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The number of shares outstanding of the Registrant's Common Stock, $1 par value, as of April 24, 2009, was
23,889,766 shares.
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Safe Harbor Statement

This report contains forward-looking statements that are based on management's beliefs, assumptions, current
expectations, estimates and projections about the financial services industry, the economy and Chemical Financial
Corporation itself. Words such as "anticipates," "believes," "estimates," "expects," "forecasts," "intends," "is likely,"
"judgment," "plans," "predicts," "projects," "should," "will," variations of such words and similar expressions are
intended to identify such forward-looking statements. All of the information concerning interest rate sensitivity in Part
I, Item 3 is forward-looking. Management's determination of the provision and allowance for loan losses involves
judgments that are inherently forward-looking. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve
certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions ("risk factors") that are difficult to predict with regard to timing, extent,
likelihood and degree of occurrence. Therefore, actual results and outcomes may materially differ from what may be
expressed or forecasted in such forward-looking statements. Chemical Financial Corporation undertakes no obligation
to update, amend or clarify forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise.

Risk factors include, but are not limited to, the risk factors described in Item 1A in Chemical Financial Corporation's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, the timing and level of asset growth; changes in
banking laws and regulations; changes in tax laws; changes in prices, levies and assessments; the impact of
technological advances and issues; governmental and regulatory policy changes; opportunities for acquisitions and the
effective completion of acquisitions and integration of acquired entities; the possibility that anticipated cost savings
and revenue enhancements from acquisitions, restructurings, reorganizations and bank consolidations may not be
realized fully or at all or within expected time frames; the local and global effects of the ongoing war on terrorism and
other military actions, including actions in Iraq; and current uncertainties and fluctuations in the financial markets and
stocks of financial services providers due to concerns about credit availability and concerns about the Michigan
economy in particular. These and other factors are representative of the risk factors that may emerge and could cause a
difference between an ultimate actual outcome and a preceding forward-looking statement.

3
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Part I. Financial Information
Item 1. Financial Statements

Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

March 31,
2009

December 31,
2008

March 31,
2008

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share data)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents:
   Cash and cash due from banks $ 83,976 $ 168,650 $ 93,063
   Federal funds sold - - 135,000
   Interest-bearing deposits with unaffiliated banks and others 142,184 4,572 34,066

               Total cash and cash equivalents 226,160 173,222 262,129
Investment securities:
   Available-for-sale (at estimated fair value) 501,594 449,947 490,950
   Held-to-maturity (estimated fair value - $101,452 at March
31,
      2009, $90,556 at December 31, 2008 and $89,440 at March
31,
      2008)

108,600 97,511 88,659

               Total investment securities 610,194 547,458 579,609
Other securities 22,128 22,128 22,142
Loans held-for-sale 28,336 8,463 10,792
Loans:
   Commercial 563,118 587,554 527,514
   Real estate commercial 784,475 786,404 764,768
   Real estate construction 112,102 119,001 128,878
   Real estate residential 809,262 839,555 817,348
   Consumer 682,632 649,163 546,486

               Total loans 2,951,589 2,981,677 2,784,994
   Allowance for loan losses (62,562) (57,056) (39,662)

               Net loans 2,889,027 2,924,621 2,745,332
Premises and equipment (net of accumulated depreciation of
$73,096
      at March 31, 2009, $71,614 at December 31, 2008 and
$67,241 at
      March 31, 2008)

52,914 53,036 49,339

Goodwill 69,908 69,908 69,908
Other intangible assets 5,224 5,241 6,342
Interest receivable and other assets 71,860 70,236 53,705

               Total Assets $ 3,975,751 $ 3,874,313 $ 3,799,298

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Deposits:
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   Noninterest-bearing $ 526,343 $ 524,464 $ 519,405
   Interest-bearing 2,578,193 2,454,328 2,432,994

               Total deposits 3,104,536 2,978,792 2,952,399
Interest payable and other liabilities 37,573 35,214 24,274
Short-term borrowings 221,247 233,738 178,000
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances - long-term 125,025 135,025 130,049

               Total liabilities 3,488,381 3,382,769 3,284,722
Shareholders' equity:
   Common stock, $1 par value per share:
     Authorized - 30,000,000 shares
     Issued and outstanding - 23,889,766 shares at March 31,
2009,
     23,880,593 shares at December 31, 2008 and 23,823,245
shares at      March 31, 2008

23,890 23,881 23,823

   Surplus 347,264 346,916 344,935
   Retained earnings 129,249 133,578 144,510
   Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (13,033) (12,831) 1,308

               Total shareholders' equity 487,370 491,544 514,576

               Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 3,975,751 $ 3,874,313 $ 3,799,298

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

4

Edgar Filing: CHEMICAL FINANCIAL CORP - Form 10-Q

6



Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Income (Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2009 2008

(In thousands, except per share data)
Interest Income
Interest and fees on loans $ 42,793 $ 45,570
Interest on investment securities:
  Taxable 4,502 5,839
  Tax-exempt 777 695
Dividends on other securities 163 194
Interest on federal funds sold - 1,018
Interest on deposits with unaffiliated banks and others 87 121

          Total interest income 48,322 53,437

Interest Expense
Interest on deposits 10,167 16,327
Interest on short-term borrowings 233 959
Interest on FHLB advances - long-term 1,332 1,765

          Total interest expense 11,732 19,051

Net Interest Income 36,590 34,386
Provision for loan losses 14,000 2,700

          Net interest income after provision for loan losses 22,590 31,686

Noninterest Income
Service charges on deposit accounts 4,475 4,774
Trust and investment services revenue 2,375 2,654
Other charges and fees for customer services 1,801 1,596
Mortgage banking revenue 1,150 536
Other 56 20

          Total noninterest income 9,857 9,580

Operating Expenses
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 15,417 14,479
Occupancy 2,707 2,770
Equipment 2,342 2,187
Other 8,739 7,408

          Total operating expenses 29,205 26,844
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Income Before Income Taxes 3,242 14,422
Federal income tax expense 524 4,751

Net Income $ 2,718 $ 9,671

Net Income Per Share:  
Basic $ 0.11 $ 0.41
Diluted 0.11 0.41

Cash Dividends Per Share 0.295 0.295

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity (Unaudited)

Common
Stock Surplus

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Total

(In thousands, except per share data)
Balances at January 1, 2008 $23,815 $344,579 $141,867 $(1,797) $508,464
Comprehensive income:
   Net income 9,671
   Other:
    Net unrealized gains on investment
         securities-available-for-sale, net of tax
         expense of $1,701 3,158
      Adjustment for pension and other
         postretirement benefits, net of tax
         benefit of $28 (53)
Comprehensive income 12,776
Cash dividends declared of $0.295 per share (7,028) (7,028)
Shares issued - directors' stock purchase plan 8 223 231
Share-based compensation 133 133

Balances at March 31, 2008 $23,823 $344,935 $144,510 $1,308 $514,576

Balances at January 1, 2009 $23,881 $346,916 $133,578 $(12,831) $491,544
Comprehensive income:
   Net income 2,718
   Other:
      Net unrealized losses on investment
         securities-available-for-sale, net of tax
         benefit of $82 (152)
      Adjustment for pension and other
         postretirement benefits, net of tax
         benefit of $27 (50)
Comprehensive income 2,516
Cash dividends declared of $0.295 per share (7,047) (7,047)
Shares issued - directors' stock purchase plan 9 235 244
Share-based compensation 113 113

Balances at March 31, 2009 $23,890 $347,264 $129,249 $(13,033) $487,370

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2009 2008

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: (In thousands)
   Net income $ 2,718 $ 9,671
   Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
      Provision for loan losses 14,000 2,700
      Gains on sales of loans (1,843) (383)
      Proceeds from sales of loans 100,269 43,366
      Loans originated for sale (118,299) (45,892)
      Net (gain) loss on sales of other real estate and repossessed assets (50) 56
      Gain on sale of branch bank property (39) -
      Net losses on disposal of premises and equipment 14 -
      Depreciation of premises and equipment 1,575 1,434
      Amortization of intangible assets 828 871
      Net amortization of premiums and discounts on investment securities 4 97
      Share-based compensation expense 113 133
      Net (increase) decrease in interest receivable and other assets (960) 1,078
      Net increase in interest payable and other liabilities 2,315 1,604

            Net cash provided by operating activities 645 14,735

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
   Investment securities-Available-for-sale:
      Proceeds from maturities, calls and principal reductions 60,003 47,418
      Purchases (111,880) (30,830)
   Investment securities-Held-to-maturity:
      Proceeds from maturities, calls and principal reductions 5,402 3,554
      Purchases (16,499) (475)
   Other securities:
      Purchases - (7)
   Net decrease in loans 17,920 7,437
   Proceeds from sales of other real estate and repossessed assets 2,180 1,202
   Proceeds from sale of branch bank property 184 -
   Purchases of premises and equipment, net (1,467) (1,068)

               Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (44,157) 27,231

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
   Net increase in noninterest-bearing and interest-bearing demand
      deposits and savings accounts 108,881 49,391
   Net increase in time deposits 16,863 27,419
   Net decrease in securities sold under agreements to repurchase (12,491) (19,363)
   Repayment of FHLB advances - long-term (10,000) (20,000)
   Cash dividends paid (7,047) (7,028)
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   Proceeds from directors' stock purchase plan 244 231

               Net cash provided by financing activities 96,450 30,650

               Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 52,938 72,616
               Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 173,222 189,513

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ 226,160 $ 262,129

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
   Interest paid $ 12,372 $ 19,825
   Loans transferred to other real estate and repossessed assets 3,674 4,543
   Investment securities-Available-for-sale transferred to
      Investment securities-Held-to-maturity - 502
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2009

Note 1:  Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of Chemical Financial Corporation (Corporation) have
been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for interim financial
information and the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all
of the information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of
management, the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments necessary to
present fairly the financial condition and results of operations of the Corporation for the periods presented. Operating
results for the three months ended March 31, 2009 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected
for the year ending December 31, 2009. For further information, refer to the consolidated financial statements and
footnotes thereto included in the Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to place them on a basis comparable with the current period's
financial statements. Such reclassifications had no impact on net income or shareholders' equity.

Fair Value Measurement

Effective January 1, 2008, the Corporation adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 157,
"Fair Value Measurements" (SFAS 157). Under SFAS 157, fair value refers to the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants in the market
in which the reporting entity transacts such sales or transfers. SFAS 157 clarifies the principle that fair value should be
based on the assumptions market participants would use when pricing an asset or liability. In support of this principle,
SFAS 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the information used to develop those assumptions. The
fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets and the lowest priority to
unobservable data, for example, the reporting entity's own data. Under SFAS 157, fair value measurements are
separately disclosed by level within the fair value hierarchy.

Effective January 1, 2008, the Corporation adopted SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities, including an amendment of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 115"
(SFAS 159). SFAS 159 provides companies with an option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair
value. At March 31, 2009, December 31, 2008 and March 31, 2008, the Corporation had not elected the fair value
option for any financial assets or liabilities under the guidance of SFAS 159.

Share-Based Compensation

The Corporation accounts for share-based compensation under SFAS No. 123(R), "Share-Based Payment" (SFAS
123(R)), using the modified-prospective transition method. Under that method, compensation expense is recognized
for all share-based awards granted prior to, but not yet vested, as of January 1, 2006, and all share-based awards
granted after December 31, 2005 based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original
provisions of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" (SFAS 123).

The fair value of share-based awards is recognized as compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite
service period. The requisite service period is the shorter of the vesting period or the period to normal retirement
eligibility.
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Taxes

The difference between the federal statutory income tax rate and the Corporation's effective federal income tax rate is
primarily a function of the proportion of the Corporation's interest income exempt from federal taxation,
nondeductible interest expense and other nondeductible expenses relative to pretax-income and tax credits.

8
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Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2009

Note 1:  Basis of Presentation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases at the
enacted tax rates expected to be applied to taxable income in the years in which those differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. Reserves for contingent tax liabilities are reviewed quarterly for adequacy based upon
developments in tax law and the status of audit examinations in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 48,
"Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes" (FIN 48). The Corporation had no reserve for contingent income tax
liabilities recorded at March 31, 2009.

The tax periods open to examination by the Internal Revenue Service include the fiscal years ended December 31,
2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005. The same fiscal years are open to examination for the Michigan Business Tax/Michigan
Single Business Tax with the addition of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004.

Earnings Per Share

All earnings per share amounts have been presented to conform to the requirements of SFAS No. 128, "Earnings Per
Share." Basic earnings per share excludes any dilutive effect of common stock equivalents. Basic earnings per share
for the Corporation is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding.

Diluted earnings per share for the Corporation is computed by dividing net income by the sum of the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding and the dilutive effect of common stock equivalents. Average shares
of common stock for diluted net income per share include shares to be issued upon exercise of stock options, stock to
be issued for the deferred compensation plan for non-employee directors, and stock to be issued for the stock purchase
plan for non-employee community advisors. For any period in which a loss is recorded, the assumed exercise of stock
options and stock to be issued for the deferred compensation plan and the stock purchase plan would have an
anti-dilutive impact on the loss per share and thus are excluded in the diluted per share calculation.

The following table summarizes the number of shares used in the numerator and denominator of the basic and diluted
earnings per share computations:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(In thousands, except per
share amounts)

2009 2008

Numerator for both basic and diluted
   earnings per share, net income $2,718 $9,671

Denominator for basic earnings per share,
   weighted average common shares outstanding 23,890 23,823
Weighted average common stock equivalents 10 4
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Denominator for diluted earnings per share 23,900 23,827

Basic earnings per share $0.11 $0.41
Diluted earnings per share 0.11 0.41

The average number of employee stock option awards outstanding that were "out-of-the-money," whereby the option
exercise price per share exceeded the market price per share were as follows: 475,689 and 588,954 for the three
months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Variable Interest Entity

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of a variable interest entity for which the
Corporation is the primary beneficiary. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated
upon consolidation.

9
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Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2009

Note 1:  Basis of Presentation (continued)

Equity

In January 2008, the board of directors of the Corporation authorized management to repurchase up to 500,000 shares
of the Corporation's common stock. During the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, no shares were
repurchased. At March 31, 2009, there were 500,000 remaining shares available for repurchase under the January
2008 authorization.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of related tax benefits (expense), at March
31, 2009, December 31, 2008 and March 31, 2008 were as follows:

March 31,
2009

December 31,
2008

March 31,
2008

(In thousands)
Net unrealized gains on investment securities-
   available-for-sale,  net of related tax expense of
   $1,528 at March 31, 2009, $1,610 at
   December 31, 2008 and $2,549 at March 31,
   2008. $   2,838 $   2,990 $  4,734
Pension and other postretirement benefits
   adjustment, net of related tax benefit of $8,546
   at March 31, 2009, $8,519 at December 31,
   2008, and $1,844 at March 31, 2008. (15,871) (15,821) (3,426)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) $(13,033) $(12,831) $  1,308

Operating Segment

The Corporation operates in a single operating segment - commercial banking. The Corporation is a financial holding
company that operated through one commercial bank, Chemical Bank, at March 31, 2009. Chemical Bank operates
primarily within the state of Michigan as a single state-chartered commercial bank. Chemical Bank operates through
an internal organizational structure of four regional banking units, offering a full range of commercial banking and
fiduciary products and services to the residents and business customers in the bank's geographical market areas. The
products and services offered by the regional banking units, through branch banking offices, as well as the pricing of
these products and services, are generally consistent throughout the Corporation. The marketing of products and
services throughout the Corporation's regional banking units is generally uniform, as many of the markets served by
the regional banking units overlap. The distribution of products and services is uniform throughout the Corporation's
regional banking units and is achieved primarily through retail branch banking offices, automated teller machines and
electronically accessed banking products.

The Corporation's primary sources of revenue are from its loan products and investment securities.

Pending Accounting Pronouncements
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Postretirement Benefit Plan Asset Disclosures: In December 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP)
SFAS 132(R)-1, "Employers' Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets" (FSP SFAS 132(R)-1). FSP
SFAS 132(R)-1 amends SFAS No. 132(R), "Employers' Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement
Benefits," to provide guidance on an employer's disclosures about plan assets of a defined benefit pension or other
postretirement plan. Upon initial application, the provisions of FSP SFAS 132(R)-1 are not required for earlier periods
that are presented for comparative purposes. The disclosures about plan assets required by FSP SFAS 132(R)-1 must
be provided for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2009 and are not expected to have a material impact on the
Corporation's consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

Fair Value Measurements: In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 157-4, "Determining Fair Value When the
Volume and Level of Activity for the Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions

10
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Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2009

Note 1:  Basis of Presentation (continued)

That Are Not Orderly" (FSP SFAS 157-4). FSP SFAS 157-4 relates to determining fair values when there is no active
market or where the price inputs being used represent distressed sales. It reaffirms what SFAS 157 states that the
objective of fair value measurement is to reflect how much an asset would be sold for in an orderly transaction (as
opposed to a distressed or forced transaction) at the date of the financial statements under current market conditions.
Specifically, it reaffirms the need to use judgment to ascertain if a formerly active market has become inactive and in
determining fair values when markets have become inactive. FSP SFAS 157-4 is effective for interim and annual
periods ending after June 15, 2009, with early adoption permitted for interim and annual periods ending after March
15, 2009. The adoption of FSP SFAS 157-4 as of April 1, 2009 is not expected to have a material impact on the
Corporation's consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment: In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2,
"Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments" (FSP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2). FSP
SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2 on other-than-temporary impairments is intended to bring greater consistency to the
timing of impairment recognition, and provide greater clarity to investors about the credit and noncredit components
of impaired debt securities that are not expected to be sold. The measure of impairment in comprehensive income
remains fair value. FSP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2 also require increased and timelier disclosures sought by
investors regarding expected cash flows, credit losses and an aging of securities with unrealized losses. FSP SFAS
115-2 and SFAS 124-2 are effective for interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009, with early adoption
permitted for interim and annual periods ending after March 15, 2009. The adoption of FSP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS
124-2 as of April 1, 2009 is not expected to have a material impact on the Corporation's consolidated financial
condition or results of operations.

Fair Value Disclosures: In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 107-1 and Accounting Principles Board (APB)
Opinion No. 28-1, "Interim Disclosure about Fair Value of Financial Instruments" (FSP SFAS 107-1 and APB 28-1).
FSP SFAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 relate to fair value disclosures for any financial instruments that are not currently
reflected on the balance sheet of companies at fair value. Prior to issuing FSP SFAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, fair values
for these assets and liabilities were only disclosed once a year. FSP SFAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 now require these
disclosures on a quarterly basis, providing qualitative and quantitative information about fair value estimates for all
those financial instruments not measured on the balance sheet at fair value. FSP SFAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 are
effective for interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009, with early adoption permitted for interim and
annual periods ending after March 15, 2009. The adoption of FSP SFAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 as of April 1, 2009 is
not expected to have a material impact on the Corporation's consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

Legal Matters

The Corporation and its subsidiary bank are subject to certain legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business.
In the opinion of management, after consultation with legal counsel, the ultimate disposition of these matters is not
expected to have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial condition or results of operations of the
Corporation.

11

Edgar Filing: CHEMICAL FINANCIAL CORP - Form 10-Q

18



Edgar Filing: CHEMICAL FINANCIAL CORP - Form 10-Q

19



Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2009

Note 2:  Investment Securities

The following is a summary of the amortized cost and fair value of investment securities available-for-sale and
investment securities held-to-maturity at March 31, 2009, December 31, 2008 and March 31, 2008:

Investment Securities Available-for-Sale:

Amortized Cost
Unrealized
Gains

Unrealized
Losses Fair Value

(In thousands)
March 31, 2009
U.S. Treasury $  21,086 $   199 $       - $  21,285
Government sponsored agencies 172,048 3,134 (92) 175,090
State and political subdivisions 4,467 82 - 4,549
Mortgage-backed securities 151,910 3,792 (39) 155,663
Collaterized mortgage obligations 94,519 166 (762) 93,923
Corporate bonds 53,214 1 (2,131) 51,084

Total $497,244 $7,374 $(3,024) $501,594

December 31, 2008
U.S. Treasury $  21,066 $   428 $       - $  21,494
Government sponsored agencies 167,618 4,616 - 172,234
State and political subdivisions 4,458 94 - 4,552
Mortgage-backed securities 167,133 2,401 (320) 169,214
Collaterized mortgage obligations 37,527 30 (272) 37,285
Corporate bonds 47,545 23 (2,400) 45,168

Total $445,347 $7,592 $(2,992) $449,947

March 31, 2008
U.S. Treasury $  30,965 $    915 $       - $  31,880
Government sponsored agencies 184,634 4,498 (18) 189,114
State and political subdivisions 5,477 148 (4) 5,621
Mortgage-backed securities 202,743 2,728 (52) 205,419
Collaterized mortgage obligations 5,428 5 (31) 5,402
Corporate bonds 54,420 107 (1,013) 53,514

Total $483,667 $8,401 $(1,118) $490,950
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Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2009

Note 2:  Investment Securities (continued)

Investment Securities Held-to-Maturity:

Amortized Cost
Unrealized
Gains

Unrealized
Losses Fair Value

(In thousands)
March 31, 2009
Government sponsored agencies $    1,001 $       2 $       - $   1,003
State and political subdivisions 96,604 1,725 (980) 97,349
Mortgage-backed securities 495 30 - 525
Trust preferred securities 10,500 - (7,925) 2,575

Total $108,600 $1,757 $(8,905) $101,452

December 31, 2008
Government sponsored agencies $  1,007 $  10 $       - $     1,017
State and political subdivisions 85,495 845 (1,170) 85,170
Mortgage-backed securities 509 27 - 536
Trust preferred securities 10,500 - (6,667) 3,833

Total $97,511 $882 $(7,837) $  90,556

March 31, 2008
Government sponsored agencies $17,216 $  60 $       - $  17,276
State and political subdivisions 70,346 708 (25) 71,029
Mortgage-backed securities 595 38 - 633
Trust preferred securities 500 - - 500
Equity securities 2 - - 2

Total $88,659 $806 $     (25) $  89,440

The Corporation's investment securities portfolio had a carrying value of $610.2 million at March 31, 2009, with gross
impairment of $11.9 million as of that date. The gross impairment was primarily attributable to two trust preferred
securities of small bank holding companies in Michigan which were classified as held-to-maturity with impairment of
$7.9 million and two financial services industry corporate debt securities from one issuer classified as
available-for-sale with impairment of $1.7 million, which combined, comprised 81%, or $9.6 million, of the gross
unrealized losses at March 31, 2009.

At March 31, 2009, the Corporation held investment securities with a fair market value of $141.7 million that had
gross unrealized losses, which existed for less than twelve months, of $9.9 million at that date. The Corporation also
held investment securities as of March 31, 2009 with a fair market value of $25.5 million that had gross unrealized
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losses, which existed for twelve months or more, of $2.0 million at that date.

An analysis is performed quarterly by the Corporation to determine whether unrealized losses in its investment
securities portfolio are temporary or other-than-temporary. The Corporation reviews factors such as financial
statements, credit ratings, news releases and other pertinent information of the underlying issuer or company to make
its determination. Management did not believe any individual unrealized loss as of March 31, 2009 represented an
other-than-temporary impairment (OTTI). Management believed that the majority of unrealized losses on investment
securities were temporary in nature and due primarily to changes in interest rates and not as a result of credit-related
issues. There were unrealized losses of $1.7 million in investment grade corporate bonds attributable to one issuer and
$7.5 million in a trust preferred security from a well-capitalized and profitable bank holding company that were also
attributable to the illiquidity in certain financial markets. The Corporation performed a thorough analysis of the
creditworthiness of these two issuers and concluded it was probable at March 31, 2009 that all future principal and
interest payments would be received in accordance with their original contractual terms. The Corporation had both the
intent and ability to hold the investment securities with unrealized losses to maturity or until such time as the
unrealized losses recover. However, due to significant market and economic conditions, OTTI may occur as a result of
material declines in fair value of investment securities in the future.

13
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Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2009

Note 3:  Nonperforming Assets, Allowance for Loan Losses and Impaired Loans

The following summarizes nonperforming assets at the dates indicated:

March 31,
2009

December 31,
2008

March 31,
2008

(In thousands)
   Nonaccrual loans:
      Commercial $ 16,419 $ 16,324 $11,595
      Real estate commercial 41,826 27,344 19,235
      Real estate construction 18,504 15,310 17,206
      Real estate residential 12,803 12,175 9,267
      Consumer 5,185 5,313 4,057

      Total nonaccrual loans 94,737 76,466 61,360

   Accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or
      more as to interest or principal payments:
      Commercial 2,581 1,652 1,631
      Real estate commercial 4,352 9,995 2,865
      Real estate construction 538 759 392
      Real estate residential 1,699 3,369 4,742
      Consumer 1,070 1,087 940

      Total accruing loans contractually past due 90
        days or more as to interest or principal
        payments 10,240 16,862 10,570

   Total nonperforming loans 104,977 93,328 71,930
   Other real estate and repossessed assets (1) 20,688 19,923 12,664

   Total nonperforming assets $125,665 $113,251 $84,594

(1) Includes property acquired through foreclosure and by acceptance of a deed in lieu of foreclosure and other property held for sale.
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Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2009

Note 3:  Nonperforming Assets, Allowance for Loan Losses and Impaired Loans (continued)

The following summarizes the changes in the allowance for loan losses:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2009 2008

(In thousands)
Balance at beginning of period $57,056 $39,422
Provision for loan losses 14,000 2,700
Loans charged off:
   Commercial (3,290) (591)
   Real estate commercial (2,589) (1,304)
   Real estate construction (1,700) (16)
   Real estate residential (235) (245)
   Consumer (1,253) (540)

      Total loan charge-offs (9,067) (2,696)

Recoveries of loans previously charged off:
   Commercial 205 77
   Real estate commercial 87 20
   Real estate construction - 29
   Real estate residential 82 22
   Consumer 199 88

      Total loan recoveries 573 236

Net loan charge-offs (8,494) (2,460)

Balance as of March 31 $62,562 $39,662

The following summarizes credit quality statistics:

March 31,
2009

December 31,
2008

March 31,
2008

Nonperforming loans as a percent of total loans 3.56% 3.13% 2.58%
Nonperforming assets as a percent of total assets 3.16% 2.92% 2.23%
Net loans charged off against the allowance for loan losses
   to average loans (annualized) 1.15% 1.10% 0.35%
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of total loans 2.12% 1.91% 1.42%
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of nonperforming loans 60% 61% 55%
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The following summarizes impaired loan information at the dates indicated:

Impaired Loans Valuation Allowance

March 31,
2009

December 31,
2008

March 31,
2008

March 31,
2009

December 31,
2008

March 31,
2008

(In thousands)
Impaired loans with
   valuation
   allowance $35,667 $30,306 $27,104 $10,627 $9,179 $5,652
Impaired loans with
   no valuation
   allowance 41,082 28,672 21,715 - - -

Total impaired loans $76,749 $58,978 $48,819 $10,627 $9,179 $5,652

The Corporation considers all nonaccrual commercial, real estate commercial and real estate construction loans to be
impaired loans. In addition, the Corporation identified an additional $0.8 million at March 31, 2008 of impaired loans
that were in an accrual status. Real estate residential and consumer loans are considered to be homogeneous and
therefore are excluded from the analysis of impaired loans.
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Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2009

Note 4:  Intangible Assets

The Corporation has recorded three types of intangible assets: goodwill, mortgage servicing rights (MSRs) and core
deposit intangible assets. Goodwill and core deposit intangible assets arose as the result of business combinations or
other acquisitions. MSRs arose as a result of selling mortgage loans in the secondary market but retaining the right to
service these loans and receive servicing income over the life of the loan. Amortization is recorded on the MSRs and
core deposit intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortized but is evaluated at least annually for impairment. The annual
goodwill impairment review was performed as of September 30, 2008 and no impairment was indicated. No triggering
events have occurred since the annual goodwill impairment review that would require an interim evaluation.

The following table shows the net carrying value of the Corporation's intangible assets:

March 31,
2009

December 31,
2008

March 31,
2008

(In thousands)
Goodwill $69,908 $69,908 $69,908
Core deposit intangible assets 2,847 3,050 4,062
Mortgage servicing rights 2,377 2,191 2,280

Total intangible assets $75,132 $75,149 $76,250

There was no impairment valuation allowance recorded on MSRs as of March 31, 2009, December 31, 2008 or March
31, 2008. The Corporation was servicing $639.8 million, $604.5 million and $584.6 million of real estate residential
loans as of March 31, 2009, December 31, 2008 and March 31, 2008, respectively. Amortization expense of MSRs for
the three months ended March 31, 2009 and March 31, 2008 was $0.6 million and $0.3 million, respectively.

The following table sets forth the carrying amount and accumulated amortization of core deposit intangible assets that
are amortizable and arose from business combinations or other acquisitions:

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008 March 31, 2008

Gross
Original
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Carrying
Amount

Gross
Original
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Carrying
Amount

Gross
Original
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Carrying
Amount

(In thousands)
Core
deposit
intangible
assets $18,033 $15,186 $2,847 $18,033 $14,983 $3,050 $18,033 $13,971 $4,062
The amortization expense of core deposit intangible assets for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and March 31,
2008 was $0.2 million and $0.5 million, respectively.
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Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2009

Note 4:  Intangible Assets (continued)

At March 31, 2009, the remaining amortization expense on core deposit intangible assets that existed as of that date
has been estimated through 2013 and thereafter in the following table (in thousands):

2009 $   516
2010 470
2011 406
2012 406
2013 344
2014 and thereafter 705

Total $2,847

Note 5:  Fair Value Measurements

The Corporation utilizes fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and to determine
fair value disclosures. Investment securities-Available-for-sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis.
Additionally, the Corporation may be required to record other assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, such as
loans held-for-sale, impaired loans, goodwill, core deposit intangible assets, mortgage servicing rights, other real
estate and repossessed assets. These nonrecurring fair value adjustments typically involve the application of lower of
cost or market accounting or write-downs of individual assets.

The Corporation determines the fair market value of its financial instruments based on the fair value hierarchy
established in SFAS 157. There are three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value as follows:

Level 1 Valuation is based upon quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.

Level 2 Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation techniques for which all significant assumptions are
observable in the market.

Level 3 Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use at least one significant assumption not observable in the market.
These unobservable assumptions reflect estimates of assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability. Valuation techniques include use of option pricing models, discounted cash flow models or similar techniques. The
determination of fair value also requires significant management judgment or estimation.

A description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value, as well as the general
classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy, is set forth below. These valuation
methodologies were applied to all of the Corporation's financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value. In
general, fair value is based upon quoted market prices, where available. If such quoted market prices are not available,
fair value is based upon internally developed models that primarily use, as inputs, observable market-based
parameters. Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that financial instruments are recorded at fair value. Any
such valuation adjustments are applied consistently over time. The Corporation's valuation methodologies may
produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values.
While management believes the Corporation's valuation methodologies are appropriate and consistent with other
market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial
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instruments could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date. Furthermore, the reported fair value
amounts have not been comprehensively revalued since the presentation dates, and therefore, estimates of fair value
after the balance sheet date may differ significantly from the amounts presented herein.
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Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2009

Note 5:  Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

Investment Securities-Available-for-Sale

Investment securities-Available-for-sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value measurement is
based upon quoted prices, if available. If quoted prices are not available, fair values are measured using independent
pricing models or other model-based valuation techniques that include market inputs such as benchmark yields,
reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers, reference
data and industry and economic events. Level 1 securities include U.S. Treasury securities that are traded by dealers or
brokers in active over-the-counter markets. Level 2 securities include government sponsored agencies, securities
issued by state and political subdivisions, mortgage-backed securities, collateralized mortgage obligations and
corporate bonds.

For assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, SFAS 157 requires quantitative disclosures about
the fair value measurements separately for each major category of assets as reported in the following table:

Fair Value Measurements - Recurring Basis

Description

Quoted Prices
In Active
Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3) Total

(In thousands)

March 31, 2009
Investment securities-Available-for-sale $21,285 $480,309 $ - $501,594

December 31, 2008
Investment securities-Available-for-sale $21,494 $428,453 $ - $449,947

March 31, 2008
Investment securities-Available-for-sale $31,880 $459,070 $ - $490,950

There were no liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis at March 31, 2009, December 31, 2008 and March
31, 2008.

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

Loans Held-For-Sale
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The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated statements of financial position for loans held-for-sale are at the
lower of cost or market value. The fair values of loans held-for-sale are based on the market price for similar loans in
the secondary market. The Corporation classifies loans held-for-sale as nonrecurring Level 2 adjustments when cost
exceeds fair value.

Loans

The Corporation does not record loans at fair value on a recurring basis. However, from time to time, a loan is
considered impaired and an allocation of the allowance for loan losses is established. Loans for which it is probable
that payment of interest and principal will not be made in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement
are considered impaired. Once a loan is identified as individually impaired, management measures impairment in
accordance with SFAS No. 114, "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan" (SFAS 114). The fair value of
impaired loans is estimated using one of several methods, including the loan's observable market price, the fair value
of the collateral or the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's
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Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2009

Note 5:  Fair Value Measurements (continued)

effective interest rate. Those impaired loans not requiring an allocation of the allowance represent loans for which the
fair value of the expected repayments or collateral exceed the recorded investments in such loans. Substantially all of
the impaired loans were evaluated based on the fair value of the collateral. In accordance with SFAS 157, impaired
loans, where a valuation allowance is established based on the fair value of collateral, require classification in the fair
value hierarchy. When the fair value of the collateral is based on an observable market price or a current appraised
value, the Corporation records the impaired loan as nonrecurring Level 2. When an appraised value is not available or
management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised value or there is no
observable market price, the Corporation records the impaired loan as nonrecurring Level 3. The Corporation recorded
impaired loans at fair value through specific allocations of the allowance for loan losses or charge-offs recorded in
current or prior periods as follows:

Impaired Loans
Recorded at
Fair Value

Total
Impaired
Loans

(In millions)
March 31, 2009 $51.2 $76.7
December 31, 2008 45.5 59.0
March 31, 2008 34.0 48.8

Goodwill

Goodwill is subject to impairment testing on an annual basis. The market and income approach methods were used in
the completion of impairment testing at September 30, 2008. These valuation methods require a significant degree of
management judgment. In the event these methods indicate that fair value is less than the carrying value, the asset is
recorded at fair value as determined by either of the valuation models. As such, the Corporation classifies goodwill
subjected to nonrecurring fair value adjustments as Level 3. At March 31, 2009, December 31, 2008 and March 31,
2008, no goodwill impairment was recorded.

Other Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets consist of core deposit intangible assets and MSRs. These items are both carried at fair value
when initially recorded. Subsequently, core deposit intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line or accelerated
basis over periods ranging from three- to fifteen-years and are subject to impairment testing whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If core deposit intangible asset
impairment is identified and recorded, the Corporation classifies impaired core deposit intangible assets subject to
nonrecurring fair value measurements as Level 3 valuations. At March 31, 2009, December 31, 2008 and March 31,
2008, there was no impairment recorded for core deposit intangible assets. The fair value of MSRs is initially
estimated using a model that calculates the net present value of estimated future cash flows using various assumptions
including prepayment speeds, the discount rate and servicing costs. If the valuation model reflects a value less than the
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carrying value, MSRs are adjusted to fair value, determined by the model, through a valuation allowance. The
Corporation classifies MSRs subjected to nonrecurring fair value measurements as Level 3 valuations. At March 31,
2009, December 31, 2008 and March 31, 2008, there was no impairment recorded for MSRs.
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Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2009

Note 5:  Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Other Real Estate / Repossessed Assets

The carrying amounts for other real estate (ORE) and repossessed assets (RA) are reported in the consolidated
statements of financial position under "Interest receivable and other assets." ORE and RA include real estate and other
types of assets repossessed by the Corporation. ORE and RA are adjusted to the lower of cost or fair value upon the
transfer of a loan to ORE or RA. Fair value is generally based on independent appraisal values of the collateral.
Subsequently, ORE and RA are carried at the lower of cost or fair value. Fair value is based upon independent market
prices, appraised values of the collateral or management's estimation of the value of the collateral. When the fair value
of the collateral is based on an observable market price or a current appraised value, the Corporation records ORE and
RA subject to nonrecurring fair value measurements as Level 2 valuations. When an appraised value is not available
or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and there is no
observable market price, the Corporation records the ORE and RA subject to nonrecurring fair value measurements as
nonrecurring Level 3 valuations.

The Corporation may be required to measure certain assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with
GAAP. These include assets that are measured at the lower of cost or market that were recognized at fair value below
cost. The following table presents each major category of assets that was measured at fair value on a nonrecurring
basis:

Fair Value Measurements - Nonrecurring Basis

Description

Quoted Prices
In Active
Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3) Total

(In thousands)
March 31, 2009
Loans $ - $ - $51,182 $51,182
Other real estate / repossessed assets   -   - 20,254 20,254

Total $ - $ - $71,436 $71,436

December 31, 2008
Loans $ - $ - $45,522 $45,522
Other real estate / repossessed assets   -   - 19,265 19,265

Total $ - $ - $64,787 $64,787

March 31, 2008
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Loans $ - $ - $34,030 $34,030
Other real estate / repossessed assets   -   - 11,121 11,121

Total $ - $ - $45,151 $45,151

There were no liabilities recorded at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at March 31, 2009, December 31, 2008 and
March 31, 2008.

Investment securities - Held-to-Maturity Disclosed at Level 3 Valuations

At March 31, 2009, the Corporation's state and political subdivision investment securities in the held-to-maturity
portfolio were recorded at cost adjusted by amortization of premium or accretion of discount (book value). The total
amortized cost of these investment securities was $96.6 million at March 31, 2009. Fair values of these investment
securities were calculated using a combination of Level 2 and Level 3 inputs for disclosure purposes. State and
political subdivision investment securities with an amortized cost of $88.6 million at March 31, 2009 were measured
at fair value using Level 2 valuation techniques, as provided by the Corporation's third-party pricing service. The fair
value of these investment securities was determined to be $89.4 million at March 31, 2009. The fair value of the
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Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2009

Note 5:  Fair Value Measurements (continued)

remaining state and political subdivision investment security with a book value at March 31, 2009 of $8 million was
determined using Level 3 valuation techniques, as there is no market available to price this investment security. The
method used for measuring the fair value for this investment security included a comparison to the fair value of other
investment securities valued with Level 2 inputs with similar characteristics (credit, time to maturity, call structure,
etc.) and the interest yield curve for comparable debt investment securities from Bloomberg. The fair value
measurement of this investment security was $8 million at March 31, 2009.

At March 31, 2009, the Corporation held $10.5 million of trust preferred investment securities that were recorded as
held-to-maturity. Of the $10.5 million balance, $10 million represented a 100% interest in a trust preferred investment
security of a small non-public bank holding company in Michigan that was purchased in the second quarter of 2008.
The Corporation purchased the entire issue of this investment security, in a negotiated transaction with the issuer, and
therefore, there is not an active trading market for this investment security. As clarified by FSP SFAS 157-3,
"Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active" (FSP SFAS 157-3),
in a market that is not active, the use of a reporting entity's own assumptions about future cash flows and appropriately
risk-adjusted discount rates is acceptable when relevant observable inputs are not available. The guidance provides
that observable inputs (which are considered a Level 2 valuation) may require significant adjustment based on
unobservable data and result in a Level 3 valuation. At March 31, 2009, it was the Corporation's opinion that the
market for trust preferred securities was not active, and thus the fair value measurement of this investment security
was a Level 3 valuation developed in accordance with FSP SFAS 157-3. The fair value of the trust preferred
investment security was based upon a calculation of discounted cash flows. The cash flows were discounted based
upon both observable inputs and appropriate risk adjustments that market participants would make for
nonperformance, illiquidity and issuer specifics. An independent third party provided the Corporation with observable
inputs based on the existing market and insight into appropriate rate of return adjustments that market participants
would require for the additional risk associated with a single issue investment security of this nature. Using a model
that incorporated the average current yield of publicly traded performing trust preferred securities of large financial
institutions with no known material financial difficulties at March 31, 2009, and adjusted for both illiquidity and the
specific issuer, such as size, leverage position and location, an implied yield of 25% was calculated. Based upon this
implied yield, the fair value measurement of the trust preferred investment security was calculated by the Corporation
at $2.5 million, or 25% of the investment's original cost, resulting in impairment of $7.5 million. At March 31, 2009,
the Corporation concluded that the $7.5 million of impairment was temporary in nature.

Note 6:  Employee Benefit Plans

Share-Based Compensation Plans

As of March 31, 2009, there were 661,386 stock options outstanding under the Corporation's stock option plans. There
were 240,566 stock options outstanding under the Stock Incentive Plan of 2006 (2006 Plan) and 420,820 stock options
outstanding under the Stock Incentive Plan of 1997 (1997 Plan), both of which were shareholder approved. As of
March 31, 2009, there were also 30,701 restricted stock performance units outstanding and 724,800 shares available
for future issuance under the 2006 Plan. As of March 31, 2009, there were no shares available for future grant under
the 1997 Plan, by action of the board of directors in December 2006.
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During the three-month period ended March 31, 2009, the Corporation did not grant stock options or any other types
of share-based compensation. During the three-month period ended March 31, 2008, the Corporation granted options
to purchase 54,593 shares of stock and 30,701 restricted stock performance units to certain officers of the Corporation.

The restricted stock performance units vest at December 31, 2010 if any of the predetermined targeted earnings per
share levels are achieved in 2010. The restricted stock performance units vest from 0.5x to 2x the number of units
originally granted depending on which, if any, of the predetermined targeted earnings per share levels are met in 2010.
Upon vesting, the restricted stock performance units will be converted to shares of the Corporation's stock on a
one-to-one basis. However, if the minimum earnings per share performance level is not achieved in 2010, no shares
will be issued. Compensation expense related to restricted stock performance units is recognized over the requisite
performance period.

21

Edgar Filing: CHEMICAL FINANCIAL CORP - Form 10-Q

38



Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2009

Note 6:  Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

Stock options have an exercise price equal to the market value of the common stock on the date of grant, generally
vest ratably over a three-year period and expire 10 years from the date of the grant. The Corporation uses the
Black-Scholes option pricing model to measure compensation expense for stock options. The Corporation also
estimates expected forfeitures over the requisite service period.

The Corporation recognized compensation expense related to share awards of $0.1 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2009 and 2008.

A summary of stock option activity during the three months ended March 31, 2009 is presented below:

Number of
Options

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price
Per Share

Weighted-Average
Remaining

Contractual Term
(in years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic Value
(in thousands)

Outstanding at January 1, 2009 701,546 $31.15         
Granted - -         
Exercised - -         
Forfeited or expired (40,160) 35.36         

Outstanding at March 31, 2009 661,386 $30.90         6.54 $ -

Exercisable/vested at March 31, 2009 485,231 $33.16         5.81 $ -

The outstanding and exercisable options at March 31, 2009 had no intrinsic value as the closing price of the
Corporation's stock on that date of $20.81 per share was less than the exercise price of the options.

As of March 31, 2009, there was approximately $0.7 million of total unrecognized pre-tax compensation expense
related to nonvested stock options outstanding. The weighted-average period over which this amount will be
recognized is 1.5 years.

There were no stock options exercised during the three-month periods ended March 31, 2009 and 2008.
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Chemical Financial Corporation and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2009

Note 6:  Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

The components of net periodic benefit cost (income) for the Corporation's qualified and nonqualified pension plans
and nonqualified postretirement benefits plan are as follows:

Defined Benefit
Pension Plans

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2009 2008

(In thousands)
Service cost $ 344 $ 401
Interest cost 1,192 1,162
Expected return on plan assets (1,354) (1,410)
Amortization of prior service credit (1) (1)
Amortization of unrecognized net gain - (1)

Net periodic benefit cost $ 181 $ 151

Postretirement
Benefits Plan

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2009 2008

(In thousands)
Interest cost $ 70 $ 65
Amortization of prior service credit (81) (81)
Amortization of unrecognized net loss 6 2

Net periodic benefit income $ (5) $ (14)

401(k) Savings Plan expense for the Corporation's match of participants' base compensation and a 4% of eligible pay
contribution to certain employees who are not grandfathered under the Pension Plan was $0.6 million and $0.5 million
for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

For further information on the Corporation's pension and other postretirement benefits, refer to Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements included in the Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
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December 31, 2008.

Note 7:  Financial Guarantees

In the normal course of business, the Corporation is a party to financial instruments containing credit risk that are not
required to be reflected in the consolidated statements of financial position. For the Corporation, these financial
instruments are financial and performance standby letters of credit. The Corporation has risk management policies to
identify, monitor and limit exposure to credit risk. To mitigate credit risk for these financial guarantees, the
Corporation generally determines the need for specific covenant, guarantee and collateral requirements on a case-by-
case basis, depending on the nature of the financial instrument and the customer's creditworthiness. At March 31,
2009 and 2008, the Corporation had $41.5 million and $31.4 million, respectively, of outstanding financial and
performance standby letters of credit which expire in five years or less. The majority of these standby letters of credit
are collateralized. At March 31, 2009, the Corporation's assessment determined there were no inherent losses relating
to standby letters of credit, thus a liability has not been established.
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following is management's discussion and analysis of certain significant factors that have affected the
Corporation's financial condition and results of operations during the periods included in the consolidated financial
statements included in this filing.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Corporation's consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and follow general practices within the industry in which the Corporation operates.
Application of these principles requires management to make estimates, assumptions and complex judgments that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. These estimates, assumptions and
judgments are based on information available as of the date of the financial statements; accordingly, as this
information changes, the financial statements could reflect different estimates, assumptions and judgments. Actual
results could differ significantly from those estimates. Certain policies inherently have a greater reliance on the use of
estimates, assumptions and judgments and, as such, have a greater possibility of producing results that could be
materially different than originally reported. Management has identified the determination of the allowance for loan
losses, pension plan accounting, income and other taxes, and the evaluation of goodwill impairment to be the
accounting areas that require the most subjective or complex judgments, and as such, could be most subject to revision
as new or additional information becomes available or circumstances change, including overall changes in the
economic climate and/or market interest rates. Therefore, management considers them to be critical accounting
policies and discusses them directly with the Audit Committee of the board of directors. The Corporation's significant
accounting policies are more fully described in Note 1 to the audited consolidated financial statements contained in
the Corporation's 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K and the more significant assumptions and estimates made by
management are more fully described in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations - Critical Accounting Policies" in the Corporation's 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K. There have
been no material changes to those policies or the estimates made pursuant to those policies during the most recent
quarter.

Summary

The Corporation's net income was $2.7 million in the first quarter of 2009, compared to net income of $9.7 million in
the first quarter of 2008. Diluted earnings per share was $0.11 in the first quarter of 2009, down from $0.41 in the first
quarter of 2008. The decreases in net income and earnings per share were primarily the result of an increase in the
provision for loan losses.

Return on average assets in the first quarter of 2009 was 0.28%, compared to 1.03% in the first quarter of 2008 on an
annualized basis. Return on average equity in the first quarter of 2009 was 2.3%, compared to 7.7% in the first quarter
of 2008 on an annualized basis.

Total assets were $3.98 billion as of March 31, 2009, up $176.5 million, or 4.6%, from March 31, 2008, and up
$101.4 million, or 2.6%, from $3.87 billion at December 31, 2008.

Total loans were $2.95 billion as of March 31, 2009, an increase of $166.6 million, or 6.0%, from March 31, 2008,
and a decrease of $30.1 million, or 1.0%, from December 31, 2008. The increase in total loans from March 31, 2008
was attributable to increases in commercial, real estate commercial and consumer loans being only partially offset by
lower real estate residential loans and real estate construction loans. The decrease in total loans from December 31,
2008 was due to decreases in commercial, real estate commercial, real estate construction and real estate residential
loans being only partially offset by higher consumer loans.
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At March 31, 2009, shareholders' equity was 12.3% of total assets and $20.40 per outstanding common share.
Shareholders' equity of $487.4 million as of March 31, 2009 decreased $4.2 million, or 0.8%, from December 31,
2008. The decrease in shareholders' equity during the three months ended March 31, 2009 was primarily attributable
to cash dividends paid to shareholders exceeding net income during the three months ended March 31, 2009.
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Balance Sheet Changes

Total Assets

Total assets were $3.98 billion as of March 31, 2009, an increase of $101.4 million, or 2.6%, from total assets of $3.87
billion as of December 31, 2008 and an increase of $176.5 million, or 4.6%, from total assets of $3.80 billion as of
March 31, 2008. The increase in total assets from December 31, 2008 was primarily attributable to increases in
investment securities and short-term investments that were funded by increased deposits, including some seasonal
deposits. The increase in total assets from March 31, 2008 was primarily attributable to an increase in total loans that
was funded by increased deposits.

Interest-earning assets were $3.75 billion at March 31, 2009, an increase of $190.1 million, or 5.3%, from December
31, 2008. The increase in interest-earning assets between December 31, 2008 and March 31, 2009 was primarily
attributable to the increases in investment securities and short-term investments that were funded by increased
deposits, including some seasonal deposits.

Investment Securities

The Corporation accounts for all investment securities in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities" (SFAS 115), under
which the Corporation is required to assess debt securities that have fair values below amortized cost basis to
determine whether the decline (impairment) is other-than-temporary. Impairment is other-than-temporary if the
assessment concludes that it is probable that the holder will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the debt instrument. SFAS 115 permits the use of reasonable management judgment of the
probability that the holder will or will not be able to collect all amounts due. In addition, SFAS 115 also requires that
the holder must have the intent and ability to hold the security to recovery for an impairment to be deemed temporary
and not require a charge to earnings. In addition, FASB Staff Position (FSP) 115-1, "The Meaning of
Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments," clarified that an investor should
recognize an impairment loss in the period that the impairment is deemed other-than-temporary.

The accounting guidance does not provide for an automatic conclusion that a security does not have
other-than-temporary impairment (OTTI) because all of the scheduled payments to date have been received. Further
analysis and judgment are required to assess whether a decline in fair value is temporary and that it is probable that the
holder will collect all of the contractual or estimated cash flows from the investment security. Further, the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 5M, "Other-than-Temporary Impairment of
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities," states that the length of time and extent to which the fair value has
been less than cost can indicate a decline is other-than-temporary. The longer and/or the more severe the decline in
fair value, the more persuasive the evidence that is needed to overcome the premise that the holder will not collect all
of the contractual or estimated cash flows from the investment security. Accordingly, in making an OTTI assessment,
the holder is to consider all available information relevant to the collectibility of the investment security, including
information about past events, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts, when developing the
estimate of future cash flows. The accounting literature also recommends the holder consider industry analyst reports
and forecasts, sector credit ratings and other market data that are relevant to the collectibility of the investment
security.

The Corporation's investment securities portfolio had a carrying value of $610.2 million at March 31, 2009, with gross
impairment of $11.9 million as of that date. The Corporation concluded that at March 31, 2009 the impairment was
temporary. A further discussion of the impairment and the Corporation's process that resulted in the conclusion that
the impairment was temporary follows.
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At March 31, 2009, the Corporation's investment securities portfolio included government sponsored agency securities
that had gross impairment of $0.09 million, state and political subdivisions securities with gross impairment of
$0.98 million, mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations, combined, with gross impairment
of $0.80 million, corporate bonds with gross impairment of $2.1 million and trust preferred securities with gross
impairment of $7.9 million.

The state and political subdivisions investment securities in the held-to-maturity portfolio totaling $96.6 million at
March 31, 2009 were recorded at amortized cost. The majority of these investment securities are from issuers
primarily located in the state of Michigan and are primarily general obligations of the issuer, meaning that the
Corporation has the first claim on taxes collected for the repayment of the investment securities. Of the total
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$96.6 million, investment securities totaling $21.7 million had gross impairment of $0.98 million at March 31, 2009.
The majority of the investment securities with impairment mature beyond 2016 and, due to the steepness of the
interest yield curve at March 31, 2009, the Corporation determined that the impairment of $0.98 million at March 31,
2009 was attributable to the change in market interest rates and that the impairment was temporary in nature. The
Corporation has the intent and ability to hold these impaired investment securities to maturity.

The mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations, combined, are included in the
available-for-sale investment securities portfolio, with an amortized cost of $246.4 million and gross impairment of
$0.80 million at March 31, 2009. Virtually all of the impaired investment securities in these two categories are backed
by an explicit guarantee of the U.S. government. The Corporation assessed the impairment on these investment
securities at March 31, 2009 and determined the impairment was attributable to the general decline in market interest
rates and the impairment on these investment securities at that date was temporary in nature. The Corporation has the
intent and ability to hold these impaired investment securities to maturity.

At March 31, 2009, the Corporation's corporate bond portfolio had an amortized cost of $53.2 million, with gross
impairment of $2.1 million. Fair values of all of the corporate bonds were below amortized cost at March 31, 2009.
All of the corporate bonds held at March 31, 2009 were of an investment grade, except one single issue investment
security, Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. The Corporation's remaining amortized cost of the Lehman Brothers
Holdings Inc. bond was less than $0.1 million at March 31, 2009. The investment grade ratings obtained for the
balance of the corporate bond portfolio indicated that the obligors' capacities to meet their financial commitments was
"strong." The majority of the impairment existing at March 31, 2009 was attributable to two corporate bonds from one
issuer with a combined amortized cost/par value of $2.7 million that had impairment of $1.7 million, or 81%, of the
total impairment on corporate bonds at that date. Both corporate bonds are senior unsecured obligations of American
General Finance Corporation (AGFC), a wholly-owned subsidiary of American General Finance Inc. (AGFI), which
is wholly-owned indirectly by American International Group (AIG). The amortized cost/par value amounts of the
bonds were $0.2 million and $2.5 million with maturity dates of September 1, 2010 and December 15, 2011,
respectively.

The Corporation performed an assessment of the probability that it would collect all of the contractual amounts due
under the two AGFC corporate bonds at March 31, 2009. Ratings from Moody's, Standard & Poor's and Fitch were
Baa2, BB+ and BBB, respectively, at March 31, 2009. AGFC was downgraded by each of these rating services twice
during 2008 and by Moody's on March 17, 2009 to a ratio which is just below investment grade and by Standard &
Poor's on February 9, 2009 to a lower investment grade rating. Both Standard and Poor's and Fitch indicated, through
the assignment of their ratings, that the issuer appeared to have a strong ability to pay its financial obligations in the
intermediate term.

The public filing of AGFC's Form 10-K with the SEC for the period ended December 31, 2008 indicated AGFC had
suffered a financial loss of $1.3 billion in 2008; however, AGFC's total equity at December 31, 2008 was $2.1 billion,
or 8% of total assets. AGFC's own assessment of its financial condition at December 31, 2008 indicated that, after
consideration of many factors, although primarily due to its ability to obtain funding from its parent company and its
ability to severely reduce originations of finance receivables, AGFC believed it would have adequate liquidity to
finance and operate its businesses and repay its obligations for at least the next twelve months. However, it is possible
that the actual outcome of one or more of AGFC's significant judgments or estimates could prove to be materially
incorrect and AGFC may not have sufficient cash to meet its obligations in the future. A $0.1 million AGFC bond
owned by the Corporation that matured on October 15, 2008 was paid in full on that date as was a March 2009 interest
payment on AGFC's variable rate bond issue owned by the Corporation.

At March 31, 2009, the Corporation believed it was probable, as defined by SFAS 115, that it would receive all
contractual cash flows of its corporate bond portfolio and determined that the impairment on the corporate bond
portfolio at that date was temporary in nature. The Corporation has the intent and ability to hold these impaired
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investment securities to maturity.

At March 31, 2009, the Corporation owned $10.5 million of trust preferred securities that had gross impairment of
$7.9 million. Of the $10.5 million balance, $10 million represented a 100% interest in a trust preferred security
(TRUP) of a small non-public bank holding company in Michigan (issuer) that was purchased in the second quarter of
2008. At March 31, 2009, the Corporation determined the fair value of the TRUP was $2.5 million. The fair value
measurement was developed based upon market pricing observations of much larger banking institutions in an illiquid
market adjusted by risk measurements. The fair value of the TRUP was based on a calculation of discounted cash
flows, based upon both observable inputs and appropriate risk adjustments that market participants would make for
performance, liquidity and issuer specifics. See the additional discussion of the development of the fair value of the
TRUP in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Management reviewed financial information of the issuer of the TRUP at March 31, 2009. Based on this review, the
Corporation concluded that the significant decline in fair value of the TRUP, compared to its amortized cost, was not
attributable to adverse conditions specifically related to the issuer. At March 31, 2009, it was the Corporation's
opinion that the issuer appeared well positioned to continue to realize positive net income in 2009. The issuer had
consistent earnings in 2007 and 2008 and reported a 25% increase in earnings during the first quarter of 2009
compared to the first quarter of 2008. At March 31, 2009, the issuer had equity capital of $57.9 million and a liquidity
position which included $120 million in investment securities held as available-for-sale. Based on the Corporation's
analysis at March 31, 2009, it was the Corporation's opinion that the issuer appeared to be a financially sound
institution with ample liquidity to meet all of its financial obligations in 2009. This TRUP is not independently rated.
Industry bank ratings for 2008, obtained from the issuer, indicated the issuer was defined as "sound." Common stock
cash dividends were paid throughout 2008 and the first quarter of 2009 by the issuer and the issuer's management
anticipates cash dividends to continue to be paid in 2009 and beyond. All scheduled interest payments on the TRUP
were made on a timely basis in 2008 and the first quarter of 2009. The principal of $10 million of the TRUP matures
in 2038, with interest payments due quarterly.

Based on the information provided by the issuer, as of March 31, 2009, it was the Corporation's opinion that there had
been no adverse changes in the issuer's financial performance since the TRUP was issued and purchased by the
Corporation and no indication that any adverse trends were developing that would suggest that the TRUP would be
unable to make all future principal and interest payments. Further, based on the information provided, the issuer
appeared to be a financially viable financial institution with both the credit quality and liquidity necessary to meet all
financial obligations in 2009. At March 31, 2009, the Corporation was not aware of any regulatory issues,
memorandums of understanding or cease and desist orders that had been issued to the issuer or its subsidiaries. In
reviewing all available information regarding the issuer reflecting past performance and its financial and liquidity
position, it was the Corporation's opinion that the future cash flows of the issuer supported the carrying value of the
TRUP at its original cost of $10 million at March 31, 2009. There can be no assurance that other-than-temporary
impairment losses will not be recognized on TRUPs or any other investment security in the future. While the fair
value of the TRUP was $7.5 million below the Corporation's carrying value (original cost) at March 31, 2009 and the
TRUP was impaired, it was the Corporation's assessment that the overall financial condition of the issuer did not
indicate other-than-temporary impairment of the TRUP and that the unrealized loss was temporary at March 31, 2009.
The Corporation has the intent and ability to hold this impaired investment security to maturity.

Loans

The Corporation's subsidiary bank is a full-service commercial bank and, therefore, the acceptance and management
of credit risk is an integral part of the Corporation's business. At March 31, 2009, the Corporation's loan portfolio was
$2.95 billion and consisted of loans to commercial borrowers (commercial, real estate commercial and real estate
construction-commercial) totaling $1.44 billion, or 49% of total loans, loans to consumer borrowers for the purpose of
acquiring residential real estate (real estate construction-residential and real estate residential) totaling $828 million, or
28% of total loans, and loans to consumer borrowers secured by various types of collateral totaling $683 million, or
23% of total loans, at that date. Loans at fixed interest rates comprised 82% of the Corporation's loan portfolio at
March 31, 2009, compared to 79% at December 31, 2008. The Corporation maintains loan policies and credit
underwriting standards as part of the process to manage credit risk. Underwriting standards are designed to promote
relationship banking rather than transactional banking. These standards include providing loans generally only within
the Corporation's market areas. The Corporation's lending markets generally consist of small communities across the
middle to southern and western sections of the lower peninsula of Michigan. The Corporation's lending market areas
do not include the southeastern portion of Michigan. The average size of commercial loan transactions is generally
relatively small, which decreases the risk of loss within the commercial loan portfolio due to the lack of loan
concentration. The Corporation's commercial loan portfolio, defined as commercial, real estate commercial and real
estate construction-commercial loans, is well diversified across business lines and has no concentration in any one
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industry. The total commercial loan portfolio of $1.44 billion at March 31, 2009 included 60 loan relationships of
$2.5 million and greater. These 60 borrowing relationships totaled $313.3 million and represented 21.8% of the total
commercial loan portfolio at March 31, 2009. Further, at March 31, 2009, only four of these borrowing relationships
were $10 million or higher, totaling $52.8 million, or 3.7%, of the commercial loan portfolio as of that date. These
four loans were all performing at March 31, 2009. The Corporation has no foreign loans or any loans to finance highly
leveraged transactions. The Corporation's lending philosophy is implemented through strong administrative and
reporting controls at the subsidiary bank level, with additional oversight at the corporate level. The Corporation
maintains a centralized independent loan review function, which monitors asset quality of the loan portfolio.
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Total loans at March 31, 2009 of $2.95 billion were down $30.1 million, or 1.0%, from total loans at December 31,
2008, and up $166.6 million, or 6.0%, from total loans at March 31, 2008. A summary of the changes in the loan
portfolio by category follows.

Commercial loans decreased $24.4 million, or 4.2%, from December 31, 2008 to $563.1 million at March 31, 2009.
The decrease in commercial loans was attributable to both seasonal reductions of short-term lines of credit,
particularly with the Corporation's agricultural customers, and less customer demand for new financing. Commercial
loans represented 19.1% of the Corporation's loan portfolio at March 31, 2009 and 19.7% at December 31, 2008.

Real estate loans include real estate commercial loans, real estate construction loans and real estate residential loans.
At March 31, 2009, real estate loans were $1.71 billion, a decrease of $39.1 million, or 2.2%, from December 31,
2008. Real estate loans as a percentage of total loans were 57.8% at March 31, 2009 and 58.5% at December 31, 2008.

Real estate commercial loans decreased $1.9 million, or 0.2%, from December 31, 2008 to $784.5 million at March
31, 2009. Real estate commercial loans represented 26.6% of the Corporation's loan portfolio at March 31, 2009 and
26.4% at December 31, 2008.

Commercial lending and real estate commercial lending are generally considered to involve a higher degree of risk
than one- to four-family residential lending. Real estate commercial loans are loans secured by real estate occupied by
the borrower for ongoing operations and non-owner occupied real estate leased to one or more tenants. At March 31,
2009, approximately 75% of the outstanding balance of the Corporation's real estate commercial loans were secured
by owner-occupied properties. Real estate commercial lending also includes loans to residential and commercial
developers for the purchase of vacant land that is intended to be developed and land development loans. Land
development loans are loans made to residential and commercial developers for infrastructure improvements to create
finished marketable lots for residential or commercial construction. Vacant land loans are also made to borrowers for
investment purposes. Commercial and real estate commercial lending typically involves larger loan balances
concentrated in a single borrower. In addition, the payment experience on loans secured by income-producing
properties, vacant land and land development loans are typically dependent on the success of the operation of the
related project and are typically affected by adverse conditions in the real estate market and in the economy. The
Corporation generally attempts to mitigate the risks associated with commercial lending by, among other things,
lending primarily in its market areas, lending across industry lines, not developing a concentration in any one line of
business and using prudent loan-to-value ratios in the underwriting process.

Real estate construction loans are originated for both business and residential properties, including development.
These loans often convert to a real estate commercial or real estate residential loan at the completion of the
construction period; however, most development loans are originated with the intention that the loans will be paid
through the sale of finished properties by the developers within twelve months of the completion date. The severe
recession in Michigan has resulted in the inability of most developers to sell their finished developed lots and units
within their original expected time frames. Further, few of the Corporation's development borrowers sold developed
lots or units during 2008 and the first quarter of 2009 due to the poor economic environment. Real estate construction
loans made to consumers are for the construction of single family residences and are secured by these properties. Real
estate construction loans to consumers at March 31, 2009 were $19.2 million, a decrease of $10.1 million, or 34.4%,
from December 31, 2008. Total real estate construction loans were $112.1 million at March 31, 2009, a decrease of
$6.9 million, or 5.8%, from December 31, 2008. The decrease in real estate construction loans was partially
attributable to the lack of residential housing development lending during the first quarter of 2009, as it has been well
publicized nationwide that this industry over expanded during the last few years. Business expansion and development
continued at a historically low rate during 2008 and into 2009 across all of the Corporation's market areas due to the
recessionary economic environment within the state of Michigan. Real estate construction loans represented 3.8% and
4.0% of the Corporation's loan portfolio as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively.
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Real estate construction lending involves a higher degree of risk than one- to four-family residential lending because
of the uncertainties of construction, including the possibility of costs exceeding the initial estimates and the need to
obtain a tenant or purchaser of the property if it will not be owner-occupied. The Corporation generally attempts to
mitigate the risks associated with construction lending by, among other things, lending primarily in its market areas,
using prudent underwriting guidelines and closely monitoring the construction process. The Corporation's risk in
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this area increased during 2008 and the first three months of 2009 as both the sale of units in residential real estate
development projects slowed significantly, as customer demand significantly decreased, and the inventory of unsold
housing units increased across the state of Michigan.

Real estate residential loans decreased $30.3 million, or 3.6%, from December 31, 2008 to $809.3 million as of March
31, 2009. The decrease in real estate residential loans was attributable to both a significant decline in Michigan's
housing market due to the overall economic environment and customers refinancing adjustable rate and balloon
mortgages to long-term fixed interest rate loans that the Corporation sold in the secondary mortgage market.
Residential real estate loans represented 27.4% of the Corporation's loan portfolio as of March 31, 2009 and 28.1% as
of December 31, 2008. The Corporation's real estate residential loans primarily consist of one- to four-family
residential loans with fixed interest rates of fifteen years or less. The Corporation's current general practice is to sell
fixed-rate real estate residential loan originations with maturities of over ten years in the secondary market. The
loan-to-value ratio at the time of origination is generally 80% or less. Loans with more than an 80% loan-to-value
ratio generally require private mortgage insurance. The Corporation originated $141 million of real estate residential
loans during the three months ended March 31, 2009, of which $118 million, or 84%, of these were originated for sale
in the secondary market, compared to the origination of $71 million in real estate residential loans during the three
months ended March 31, 2008 of which $46 million, or 65%, were originated for sale in the secondary market. At
March 31, 2009, the Corporation was servicing $640 million of real estate residential loans that had been originated
by the Corporation in its market areas and subsequently sold in the secondary mortgage market, up from $604 million
at December 31, 2008.

Consumer loans increased $33.5 million, or 5.2%, from December 31, 2008 to $682.6 million as of March 31, 2009.
Consumer loans represented 23.1% of the Corporation's loan portfolio as of March 31, 2009 and 21.8% as of
December 31, 2008. The increase in consumer loans during the three months ended March 31, 2009 was primarily
attributable to an increase in indirect consumer loans, as the Corporation has increased its efforts in this area. Late in
the fourth quarter of 2008, new electronic application tools were installed that link the Corporation's loan underwriting
department directly to the two leading dealer networks. This capability has stimulated an increase in lending
opportunities. The majority of the increase in indirect consumer loans represents automobile financing purchased from
dealerships.

Consumer loans generally have shorter terms than mortgage loans but generally involve more credit risk than one- to
four-family residential lending because of the type and nature of the collateral. The Corporation originates consumer
loans utilizing a computer-based credit scoring analysis to supplement the underwriting process. Consumer loans are
generally relatively small loan amounts that are spread across many individual borrowers, which minimizes the risk
per loan transaction. Collateral values, particularly those of automobiles, recreational vehicles and boats, are
negatively impacted by many factors, such as new car promotions, vehicle condition and even more significantly,
overall economic conditions. Consumer loans also include home equity loans, whereby consumers utilize equity in
their personal residence, generally through a second mortgage, as collateral to secure the loan. Credit risk in these
types of loans has historically been low as property values of residential real estate have historically increased year
over year. Credit risk on home equity loans increased during 2008 and the first quarter of 2009 as property values
have declined throughout the state of Michigan, thus increasing the risk of insufficient collateral, and in most cases, no
collateral available on these loans when the consumer is no longer able to make payments. Consumer lending
collections are dependent on the borrowers' continuing financial stability, and thus are more likely to be affected by
adverse personal situations. Overall, credit risk on these loans increases as the unemployment rate increases. The
unemployment rate in the state of Michigan was 12.6% at March 31, 2009, which was significantly higher than the
national average of 8.5% at that date. At December 31, 2008, the unemployment rate in the state of Michigan was
10.2% compared to the national average of 7.2% at that date.

Loans held-for-sale at March 31, 2009 were $28.3 million, an increase of $19.9 million, or 235%, compared to $8.5
million at December 31, 2008. The increase is due to a significantly higher volume of loans sold in the secondary
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market, caused by historically low interest rates being offered for long-term fixed rate mortgages.

Total Deposits

Total deposits were $3.10 billion as of March 31, 2009, an increase of $125.7 million, or 4.2%, from total deposits of
$2.98 billion as of December 31, 2008, and an increase of $152.1 million, or 5.2%, from total deposits of $2.95 billion
as of March 31, 2008. The increase in total deposits from December 31, 2008 was primarily attributable to seasonal
increases in municipal customer account balances and growth in core business and consumer deposits. The
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increase in total deposits as of March 31, 2009 compared to March 31, 2008, was primarily attributable to growth in
core business and consumer deposits.

Asset Quality

Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets consist of loans for which the accrual of interest has been discontinued, loans which are past
due as to principal or interest by ninety days or more and are still accruing interest and assets obtained through
foreclosures and repossessions. The Corporation transfers a loan that is ninety days or more past due to nonaccrual
status, unless it believes the loan is both well secured and in the process of collection. Accordingly, the Corporation
has determined that the collection of accrued and unpaid interest on any loan that is ninety days or more past due and
still accruing interest is probable. Nonperforming assets were $125.7 million as of March 31, 2009, compared to
$113.3 million as of December 31, 2008 and represented 3.2% and 2.9% of total assets, respectively. It is
management's opinion that the continued increase in nonperforming assets is, in part, attributable to the continued
severe recessionary economic climate within Michigan, which has resulted in cash flow difficulties being encountered
by many business and consumer loan customers. The Corporation's nonperforming assets are not concentrated in any
one industry or any one geographical area within Michigan, other than $20.8 million in nonperforming residential
development loans across the state of Michigan. The sizes of the commercial loan transactions are generally relatively
small, which mitigates somewhat the risk of loss within the commercial loan portfolio due to the lack of loan
concentration. At March 31, 2009, the Corporation had 60 commercial loan relationships of $2.5 million and greater
that totaled $313 million and comprised 22% of commercial, real estate commercial and real estate
construction-commercial loans at that date, with four loan relationships exceeding $10 million and totaling
$53 million. As it continues to be well publicized nationwide that appraisal values of both residential and commercial
real estate properties have generally declined, the Corporation likewise continues to experience declines in both
residential and commercial real estate appraisal values due to the weakness in the economy in Michigan. Based on the
declines in both residential and commercial real estate values, management continues to evaluate and discount
appraised values to compute estimated fair market values of real estate secured loans or obtain new appraisals. Due to
the economic climate within Michigan, it is management's opinion that nonperforming assets will continue to remain
at elevated levels throughout 2009.

The tables below provide a summary of nonperforming assets and the composition of nonperforming loans, by major
loan category, as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008.

Nonperforming Assets

March 31,
2009

December 31,
2008

(In thousands)
Nonaccrual loans $  94,737 $  76,466
Accruing loans contractually past due 90 days
   or more as to interest or principal payments 10,240 16,862

         Total nonperforming loans 104,977 93,328
Other real estate and repossessed assets 20,688 19,923

         Total nonperforming assets $125,665 $113,251
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Composition of Nonperforming Loans

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008

Amount
%

of Total Amount
%

of Total

(Dollars in thousands)
Commercial $  19,000 18% $17,976 19%
Real estate commercial 46,178 44 37,339 40
Real estate construction 19,042 18 16,069 17

          Subtotal 84,220 80 71,384 76
Real estate residential 14,502 14 15,544 17
Consumer 6,255 6 6,400 7

          Total nonperforming loans $104,977 100% $93,328 100%

Nonperforming loans at March 31, 2009 totaled $105.0 million, up $11.6 million, or 12.5%, compared to $93.3
million at December 31, 2008. The increase in nonperforming loans from December 31, 2008 to March 31, 2009
occurred in the three commercial categories (commercial, real estate commercial and real estate construction) of
nonperforming loans. Combined, these categories totaled $84.2 million at March 31, 2009, or 80% of total
nonperforming loans at that date. The majority of the Corporation's net loan charge-offs during the first three months
of 2009 occurred within these three loan categories, with 86% of net charge-offs in the first quarter of 2009
attributable to commercial loan categories. The increase in the level of nonperforming loans in the first quarter of
2009 was largely attributable to the recessionary economic conditions in the state of Michigan and in the Corporation's
local markets that have been existent in the state of Michigan since 2006, only to have worsened in 2008 and the first
quarter of 2009 with no economic indications of improvement in the near future.

The following table presents data related to nonperforming commercial, real estate commercial and real estate
construction loans by dollar amount as of the dates indicated:

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008

Number of
Borrowers Amount

Number of
Borrowers Amount

(Dollars in thousands)
$5,000,000 or more 1 $  7,147 1 $  6,083
$2,500,000 - $4,999,999 4 13,709 3 10,259
$1,000,000 - $2,499,999 16 23,576 12 18,868
$500,000 - $999,999 17 12,931 20 14,758
$250,000 - $499,999 39 13,468 31 10,125
Under $250,000 151 13,389 133 11,291

  Total 228 $84,220 200 $71,384

Nonperforming commercial loans of $19.0 million at March 31, 2009, were up $1.0 million, or 5.7%, from $18.0
million at December 31, 2008. The nonperforming commercial loans at March 31, 2009 were not concentrated in any
single industry and it is management's opinion that the increase during the first quarter of 2009 was primarily
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reflective of the recessionary economic conditions in Michigan.

The Corporation's real estate commercial loan portfolio is comprised of three categories: real estate commercial,
vacant land and land development loans. The following definitions are provided to clarify the types of loans included
in each of the real estate commercial loan categories. Real estate commercial loans are secured by real estate occupied
by the owner for ongoing operations and by non-owner occupied real estate leased to one or more tenants. Vacant land
loans are secured by undeveloped land which has been acquired for future development. Land development loans are
secured by land that is in the process of being developed in terms of infrastructure improvements to create finished
marketable lots for future development.

The nonperforming real estate commercial loan portfolio was $46.2 million at March 31, 2009, up $8.8 million, or
23.7%, from $37.3 million at December 31, 2008. At March 31, 2009, the Corporation's nonperforming real estate
commercial loan portfolio was comprised of $39.6 million of real estate commercial loans and $6.6 million of vacant
land and land development loans. At March 31, 2009, the Corporation's nonperforming real estate commercial loan
portfolio was comprised of a diverse mix of commercial lines of business and was also geographically disbursed
throughout the Company's market areas. The largest concentrations of the $46.2 million in nonperforming real estate
commercial loans at March 31, 2009 were $1.2 million in loans secured by residential development real estate and
loans totaling $6.7 million to one customer that were secured primarily by vacant land
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and developed lots, which combined comprised 17% of nonperforming real estate commercial loans at that date. At
March 31, 2009, $9.5 million of the nonperforming real estate commercial loans were in various stages of foreclosure
with 38 borrowers. The Michigan economy remains weak, thus creating a difficult business environment for many
lines of business across the state.

Nonperforming real estate construction loans of $19.0 million at March 31, 2009 were up $2.9 million, or 19%, from
$16.1 million at December 31, 2008. At March 31, 2009, $17.9 million of nonperforming real estate construction
loans were secured by residential development real estate comprised of a combination of vacant land, improved lots
and housing units. The economy in Michigan has adversely impacted housing demand throughout the state and,
accordingly, the Corporation has experienced an increase in the number of its residential real estate development
borrowers with cash flow difficulties associated with a significant decline in sales of both lots and residential real
estate.

At March 31, 2009, the Corporation had $66.0 million in residential development loans in various stages of
completion compared to a balance of $68.9 million at December 31, 2008. These loans were collateralized by a
combination of vacant land, improved lots and housing units and are included in the commercial, real estate
commercial and real estate construction loan categories. At March 31, 2009, $20.8 million, or 32%, of residential
development loans were nonperforming and are included in the nonperforming commercial, nonperforming real estate
commercial and nonperforming real estate construction loans discussed above.

Nonperforming real estate residential loans were $14.5 million at March 31, 2009, a decrease of $1.0 million, or 6.7%,
from December 31, 2008. At March 31, 2009, a total of $5.7 million of nonperforming real estate residential loans
were in various stages of foreclosure.

Nonperforming consumer loans were $6.3 million at March 31, 2009, slightly down from $6.4 million at December
31, 2008.

Other real estate and repossessed assets is a component of nonperforming assets that primarily includes real property
acquired through foreclosure or by acceptance of a deed in lieu of foreclosure, and also personal property held for
sale. Other real estate and repossessed assets totaled $20.7 million at March 31, 2009, up $0.8 million, or 3.8%, from
$19.9 million at December 31, 2008. The increase from December 31, 2008 is the result of the migration of
nonperforming loans secured by real estate into other real estate as the foreclosure process was completed, including
the expiration of the redemption period.

At March 31, 2009, other real estate and repossessed assets of $20.7 million was comprised of 44 commercial
properties totaling $5.5 million, commercial development properties obtained from four developers totaling
$1.5 million, 69 residential real estate properties totaling $7.3 million, 13 residential development projects totaling
$5.1 million and other repossessions, including commercial equipment, automobiles, boats and recreational vehicles
totaling $1.3 million.

The commercial properties totaling $7.0 million at March 31, 2009 included eight loan relationships with carrying
values greater than $0.25 million that totaled $5.1 million, with two of these properties having carrying values
exceeding $1.0 million that totaled $2.2 million. The residential properties totaling $7.3 million at March 31, 2009
included six properties with carrying values greater than $0.25 million that totaled $3.7 million, with one of these
properties having a carrying value of $1.6 million. The residential development projects totaling $5.1 million were
primarily concentrated in six projects totaling $4.5 million, or 88% of the total. These residential development projects
are unfinished in varying stages of completion. The largest residential development project is a high-rise mixed use
condominium building with eleven unsold residential units and a carrying value of $1.8 million. Only one unit has
been sold in this project and that unit was sold in 2005. The carrying value of $1.8 million on the high-rise mixed use
condominium building at March 31, 2009 is net of $1.2 million in principal write-downs.
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The historically large inventory of residential real estate properties for sale across the state of Michigan has resulted in
an increase in the Corporation's carrying time and cost of holding other real estate. Consequently, the Corporation had
$6.2 million in other real estate properties at March 31, 2009 that had been held in excess of one year as of that date.
Due to severe economic conditions in the state of Michigan, management estimated that less than 50% of the other
real estate held at March 31, 2009 will be sold during 2009. Because the redemption period on foreclosures is
relatively long in Michigan (nine months to one year) and the Corporation has many nonperforming loans that were in
the process of foreclosure at March 31, 2009, it is anticipated that the level of other real estate and repossessed assets
will continue to rise during 2009 and will likely remain at elevated levels for some period of time. Other real estate
properties are carried at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated cost to sell. At March 31, 2009, all of the other
real estate properties, except five properties totaling $0.4 million, had been written down to fair value through a
combination of a loan charge-off at the transfer of the loan to other real estate and/or as an operating expense
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write-down due to further market value decline of the property after the initial transfer date. Accordingly, at March 31,
2009, the carrying value of other real estate of $19.4 million was reflective of $11.7 million in write-downs, which
represents a 38% average write-down from the contractual loan balance remaining at the time the property was
transferred to other real estate.

There were 25 other real estate properties sold during the first quarter of 2009 for a net gain of approximately fifty
thousand dollars. Net proceeds from these sales totaled $1.7 million and on an average basis represented 66% of the
remaining contractual loan balance at the time the Corporation received title to the properties.

Impaired Loans

A loan is considered impaired when management determines it is probable that all of the principal and interest due
will not be collected according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. In most instances, the impairment is
measured based on the fair market value of the underlying collateral. Impairment may also be measured based on the
present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate. A portion of the allowance
for loan losses may be specifically allocated to impaired loans. The Corporation has determined that all of its
nonaccrual commercial, real estate commercial and real estate construction loans meet the definition of an impaired
loan.

Impaired loans totaled $76.7 million at March 31, 2009, compared to $59.0 million at December 31, 2008. After
analyzing the various components of the customer relationships and evaluating the underlying collateral of impaired
loans, the Corporation determined that at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, $35.7 million and $30.3 million,
respectively, of the impaired loans required a specific allocation of the allowance for loan losses (valuation
allowance). The specific allocation of the allowance for loan losses on impaired loans was $10.6 million at March 31,
2009, compared to $9.2 million at December 31, 2008. At March 31, 2009, $15.5 million of impaired loans, that did
not require a specific allocation of the allowance for loan losses as of that date, were partially charged off in the
amount of $10.5 million, with $4.9 million occurring during the first three months of 2009 and the remaining $5.6
million in previous years, primarily as a result of declining real estate values. The process of measuring impaired
loans and the allocation of the allowance for loan losses requires judgment and estimation. The eventual outcome may
differ from the estimates used on these loans.

The weakened economy in Michigan has resulted in higher loan delinquencies, customer bankruptcies and real estate
foreclosures. Based on current economic conditions in Michigan, management expects real estate foreclosures to
remain at higher than historical averages. It is also management's opinion that the loan portfolio is generally well
secured in spite of declining market values for all types of real estate in the state of Michigan and nationwide.

Liquidity and Debt Capacity

The maintenance of an adequate level of liquidity is necessary to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet
customers' loan demands and deposit withdrawals and to capitalize on opportunities for business expansion. The
Corporation's primary liquidity sources consist of federal funds sold, interest-bearing deposits with unaffiliated banks
and others, additional Federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis (FHLB) borrowings and other borrowings. These
sources are supplemented by new deposits and loan payments by customers.

The Corporation's total loan-to-deposit ratio as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 was 95.1% and 100.1%,
respectively.

FHLB advances - long-term are borrowings from the FHLB that have original maturities of greater than one year.
FHLB advances - long-term totaled $125 million as of March 31, 2009, compared to $135 million as of December 31,
2008 and $130 million as of March 31, 2008. At March 31, 2009, the Corporation's additional borrowing availability
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through the FHLB, based on the amount of FHLB stock owned by the Corporation, and subject to the FHLB's credit
requirements and policies, was $199 million. FHLB advances are collateralized by a blanket lien on qualified one- to
four-family residential mortgage loans with an aggregate book value equal to at least 145% of the advances. At March
31, 2009, the carrying value of these types of loans was $766 million.
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The scheduled principal repayments on FHLB advances - long-term outstanding at March 31, 2009 were as follows
(in thousands):

2009 $ 35,025
2010 40,000
2011 25,000
2012 -
2013 25,000

   Total $ 125,025

At March 31, 2009, the Corporation also had agreements in place to obtain up to $36.7 million in additional liquidity
through borrowings from the Federal Reserve Bank's discount window, at the Corporation's discretion.

The Corporation has various commitments that may impact liquidity. The following table summarizes the
Corporation's commitments and expected expiration dates by period at March 31, 2009.

Less than
1 year

1-3
years

3-5
years

More
than
5 years Total

(In thousands)
Unused commitments to extend credit $282,055 $59,210 $53,770 $24,713 $419,748
Undisbursed loans 163,863 - - - 163,863
Standby letters of credit 26,130 15,361 40 10 41,541

  Total commitments $472,048 $74,571 $53,810 $24,723 $625,152

Since the majority of these commitments historically have expired without being drawn upon, the total amount of
these commitments does not necessarily represent future cash requirements of the Corporation.

Capital Resources

As of March 31, 2009, shareholders' equity was $487.4 million, compared to $491.5 million as of December 31, 2008,
resulting in a decrease of $4.2 million, or 0.9%, during the first three months of 2009. The decrease in shareholders'
equity during the three months ended March 31, 2009 was primarily attributable to cash dividends exceeding net
income for the quarter. Shareholders' equity as a percentage of total assets was 12.3% as of March 31, 2009 and
12.7% as of December 31, 2008.

The following table represents the Corporation's and Chemical Bank's regulatory capital ratios as of March 31, 2009:

Leverage

Tier 1
Risk-Based
Capital

Total
Risk-Based
Capital

Chemical Financial Corporation - actual ratio 11.1% 15.0% 16.2%
Regulatory minimum ratio 4.0 4.0 8.0
Ratio considered "well-capitalized" by
   regulatory agencies 5.0 6.0 10.0
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Chemical Bank - actual ratio 10.2% 13.8% 15.0%
Regulatory minimum ratio 4.0 4.0 8.0
Ratio considered "well-capitalized" by
   regulatory agencies 5.0 6.0 10.0
The Corporation's Tier 1 and Total capital ratios under the risk-based capital measure at March 31, 2009 considerably
exceeded the regulatory ratios to be considered "well-capitalized" partially due to the Corporation holding $560
million in assets, primarily investment securities, which are assigned a 20% risk rating and $1 billion in residential
real estate loans and other assets which are assigned a 50% risk rating. These two risk ratings (20% and 50%)
represented 38% of the Corporation's total risk-based assets (including off-balance sheet items) at March 31, 2009.
Chemical Bank's Tier 1 and Total risk-based capital ratios are similar to the Corporation's at March 31, 2009, as the
bank's level of assets and their allocation among the various risk weights are similar to the Corporation's.
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Results of Operations

Net Interest Income

Interest income is the total amount earned on funds invested in loans, investment and other securities, federal funds
sold and interest-bearing deposits with unaffiliated banks and others. Interest expense is the amount of interest paid on
interest-bearing checking and savings accounts, time deposits, short-term borrowings and FHLB advances - long term.
Net interest income, on a fully taxable equivalent (FTE) basis, is the difference between interest income and interest
expense adjusted for the tax benefit received on tax-exempt commercial loans and investment securities. Net interest
margin is calculated by dividing net interest income (FTE) by average interest-earning assets, annualized as
applicable.

The presentation of net interest income on an FTE basis is not in accordance with GAAP, but is customary in the
banking industry. This non-GAAP measure ensures comparability of net interest income arising from both taxable and
tax-exempt loans and investment securities. The adjustments to determine net interest income (FTE) were $0.66
million and $0.57 million for the first quarters of 2009 and 2008, respectively. These adjustments were computed
using a 35% federal income tax rate.

Net interest income is the most important source of the Corporation's earnings and thus is critical in evaluating the
results of operations. Changes in the Corporation's net interest income are influenced by a variety of factors, including
changes in the level and mix of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, the level and direction of interest
rates, the difference between short-term and long-term interest rates (the steepness of the yield curve), and the general
strength of the economies in the Corporation's markets. Risk management plays an important role in the Corporation's
level of net interest income. The ineffective management of credit risk, and more significantly interest rate risk, can
adversely impact the Corporation's net interest income. Management monitors the Corporation's consolidated
statement of financial position to reduce the potential adverse impact on net interest income caused by significant
changes in interest rates. The Corporation's policies in this regard are further discussed under the subheading "Market
Risk."

The Corporation's net interest income (FTE) in the first quarter of 2009 was $37.2 million, a $2.2 million, or 6.5%,
increase from net interest income (FTE) of $35.0 million recorded in the first quarter of 2008. The increase in net
interest income (FTE) was primarily attributable to the positive impact of lower short-term interest rates reducing
interest expense more than interest income. The Corporation's growth in loan volume and deposit base also
contributed to a net increase in net interest income in the first quarter of 2009 compared to the first quarter of 2008.
The reduction of short-term interest rates and consequent steepening of the yield curve between March 31, 2008 and
March 31, 2009, positively impacted net interest income (FTE).

Net interest margin was 4.06% on a tax equivalent basis in the first quarter of 2009, compared to 3.94% in the first
quarter of 2008. The increase in net interest margin of 12 basis points during the three months ended March 31, 2009,
compared to the same time period in 2008, was primarily attributable to the decrease in the average cost of
interest-bearing liabilities outpacing the decrease in the average yield on interest-earning assets. The average cost of
interest-bearing liabilities decreased 115 basis points to 1.65% in the first quarter of 2009, compared to the first
quarter of 2008. The average yield on interest-earning assets decreased 75 basis points to 5.34% in the first quarter of
2009, compared to the first quarter of 2008. The decrease in the cost of interest-bearing liabilities was attributable to
the significant reduction in short-term market interest rates during 2008 and the fourth quarter of 2007. The yield on
the Corporation's loan portfolio has decreased less severely during a period of significantly declining interest rates due
to the loan portfolio being comprised predominately of fixed interest rate loans or loans with interest rates fixed for at
least five years.
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Net interest margin was 4.06% on a tax equivalent basis in the first quarter of 2009, compared to 4.38% in the fourth
quarter of 2008. The decrease in net interest margin of 32 basis points during the first quarter of 2009, compared to the
fourth quarter of 2008, was primarily attributable to the decrease in the average yield on interest-earning assets
outpacing the decrease in the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities. The average yield on interest-earning assets
decreased 51 basis points to 5.34% in the first quarter of 2009, compared to the fourth quarter of 2008. The average
cost of interest-bearing liabilities decreased 27 basis points to 1.65% in the first quarter of 2009, compared to the
fourth quarter of 2008. As market interest rates decreased to historically low levels, the Corporation's ability to offset
the impact on earning assets was limited by the inability to lower interest-bearing liabilities by the same magnitude
due to compressed deposit rates.

The Corporation's competitive position within many of its market areas limits its ability to materially increase core
deposits without adversely impacting the weighted average cost of the deposit portfolio. Competition for core deposits
remains strong throughout the Corporation's markets. The Corporation's ability to maintain the net interest
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margin during the remainder of 2009 will be dependent on a number of factors, including but not limited to, the
direction and magnitude of market interest rates, the slope of the interest yield curve, the state of the economic climate
in the markets that the Corporation serves, the amount and magnitude of loan prepayments, the Corporation's ability to
sell more loan, deposit and other products to existing customers, the degree of competition from other financial
institutions for both loan customers and deposit accounts and the Corporation's ability to attract new customers from
competitor financial institutions for both loans and deposits.

Average Balances, Tax Equivalent Interest and Effective Yields and Rates*

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2009 2008

Average
Balance

Tax
Equivalent
Interest

Effective
Yield/
Rate

Average
Balance

Tax
Equivalent
Interest

Effective
Yield/
Rate

(Dollars in thousands)
Assets
Interest-earning Assets:
   Loans** $2,976,091 $43,056 5.84% $2,798,949 $45,802 6.57%
   Taxable investment securities 496,595 4,502 3.63 528,338 5,839 4.42
   Tax-exempt investment securities 81,108 1,169 5.77 64,302 1,034 6.43
   Other securities 22,128 163 2.99 22,138 194 3.52
   Federal funds sold - - - 131,859 1,018 3.10
   Interest-bearing deposits with
      unaffiliated banks and others 122,804 87 0.29 16,017 121 3.04

Total interest-earning assets 3,698,726 48,977 5.34 3,561,603 54,008 6.09
Less: Allowance for loan losses 60,107 39,943
Other Assets:
   Cash and cash due from banks 90,278 94,260
   Premises and equipment 52,969 49,977
   Interest receivable and other assets 145,237 124,944

Total Assets $3,927,103 $3,790,841

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Interest-bearing Liabilities:
   Interest-bearing demand deposits $   543,883 $   764 0.57% $   550,514 $  1,965 1.44%
   Savings deposits 908,378 1,896 0.85 769,340 3,446 1.80
   Time deposits 1,080,937 7,507 2.82 1,093,118 10,916 4.02
   Securities sold under agreements to
      repurchase 224,347 233 0.42 184,459 959 2.09
   Federal Home Loan Bank
      advances - long-term 127,136 1,332 4.25 139,665 1,765 5.08

Total interest-bearing liabilities 2,884,681 11,732 1.65 2,737,096 19,051 2.80
Noninterest-bearing deposits 513,914 520,056
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Total deposits and borrowed funds 3,398,595 3,257,152
Interest payable and other liabilities 40,413 25,458
Shareholders' equity 488,095 508,231

Total Liabilities and Shareholders'
   Equity $3,927,103 $3,790,841

Net Interest Spread (FTE) 3.69% 3.29%

Net Interest Income (FTE) $37,245 $34,957

Net Interest Margin (FTE) 4.06% 3.94%

  * Taxable equivalent basis using a federal income tax rate of 35%.
** Nonaccrual loans and loans held-for-sale are included in average balances reported and are included in the calculation of yields.
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Volume and Rate Variance Analysis *

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2009 compared to 2008

Increase (Decrease)
Due to Changes in

Average
Volume**

Average
Yield/Rate**

Combined
Increase/
(Decrease)

(In thousands)
Changes in Interest Income:
    Loans $2,717 $(5,463) $(2,746)
    Taxable investment securities (349) (988) (1,337)
    Tax-exempt investment securities 247 (112) 135
    Other securities - (31) (31)
    Federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits
       with unaffiliated banks and others (855) (197) (1,052)

 Total change in interest income 1,760 (6,791) (5,031)

Changes in Interest Expense:
    Interest-bearing demand deposits (44) (1,157) (1,201)
    Savings deposits 584 (2,134) (1,550)
    Time deposits 203 (3,612) (3,409)
    Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 169 (895) (726)
    Federal Home Loan Bank advances - long-term (153) (280) (433)

 Total change in interest expense 759 (8,078) (7,319)

Total Increase in Net Interest Income (FTE) $1,001 $ 1,287 $ 2,288

  * Taxable equivalent basis using a federal income tax rate of 35%.
** The change in interest income and interest expense due to both volume and rate has been allocated to the volume and rate changes in

proportion to the relationship of the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each.
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Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses (provision) is an increase to the allowance for loan losses (allowance) to provide for
probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The allowance provides for probable losses that have been identified
with specific customer relationships and for probable losses believed to be inherent in the remainder of the loan
portfolio but that have not been specifically identified. The allowance is comprised of specific allowances (assessed
for loans that have known credit weaknesses), pooled allowances based on assigned risk ratings and historical loan
loss experience for each loan type, and an unallocated allowance for imprecision in the subjective nature of the
specific and pooled allowance methodology. Management evaluates the allowance on a quarterly basis to ensure the
level is adequate to absorb probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio. This evaluation process is inherently
subjective as it requires estimates that may be susceptible to significant change and has the potential to affect net
income materially. The Corporation's methodology for measuring the adequacy of the allowance includes several key
elements, which includes a review of the loan portfolio, both individually and by category, and includes consideration
of changes in the mix and volume of the loan portfolio, actual loan loss experience, review of collateral values, the
financial condition of the borrowers, industry and geographical exposures within the portfolio, economic conditions
and employment levels of the Corporation's local markets and other factors affecting business sectors. Management
believes that the allowance for loan losses is currently maintained at the appropriate level, considering the inherent
risk in the loan portfolio. Future significant adjustments to the allowance may be necessary due to changes in
economic conditions, delinquencies or the level of loan losses incurred.

The provision for loan losses was $14.0 million in the first quarter of 2009, compared to $18.0 million in the fourth
quarter of 2008 and $2.7 million in the first quarter of 2008. Net loan charge-offs were $8.5 in the first quarter of
2009, compared to $7.4 million in the fourth quarter of 2008 and $2.5 million in the first quarter of 2008. Net loan
losses as a percentage of average loans (annualized) on a year-to-date basis were 1.15%, 1.10% and 0.35% as of
March 31, 2009, December 31, 2008 and March 31, 2008, respectively. Net loan charge-offs during the first quarter of
2009 occurred primarily in the commercial loan types (commercial, real estate commercial and real estate construction
loans). The level of net loan charge-offs reflects the general deterioration in credit quality across the entire loan
portfolio. Net loan charge-offs of commercial, real estate commercial and real estate construction loans totaled
$7.3 million during the first quarter of 2009 and represented 86% of total net loan charge-offs during the first quarter.
The commercial loan type net loan charge-offs during the first quarter of 2009 were not concentrated in any one
industry or borrower, except $3.0 million of net loan charge-offs that were attributable to residential real estate
development loans. Nonperforming loans of $105.0 million at March 31, 2009 were up $11.6 million, or 12.5%, from
December 31, 2008. The level of the provision for loan losses each quarter reflects management's assessment of the
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses.

During the first quarter of 2009, the Corporation's valuation allowance (specific allocation of the allowance for loan
losses to impaired loans) increased $1.4 million to $10.6 million at March 31, 2009 from $9.2 million at December 31,
2008. The increase in the valuation allowance is reflective of the increase in impaired loans during the first quarter of
2009. Impaired loans were $76.7 million at March 31, 2009, up $17.7 million, or 30%, from December 31, 2008.

At March 31, 2009, the Corporation, after individually reviewing its impaired loans, determined that $41.1 million of
these loans were deemed to have sufficient collateral values so as not to require a valuation allowance. Of the $41.1
million of loans that did not have a valuation allowance, $15.5 million of these loans had been partially charged down
in the amount of $10.5 million, with $4.9 million occurring during the first three months of 2009 and the remaining
$5.6 million in previous years, primarily as a result of declining real estate values.

Economic conditions in the Corporation's markets, all within Michigan, were generally less favorable than those
nationwide during the three-month period ended March 31, 2009. Forward-looking indicators suggest these economic
conditions will continue for the remainder of 2009. Accordingly, management believes net loan losses, delinquencies

Edgar Filing: CHEMICAL FINANCIAL CORP - Form 10-Q

69



and nonperforming loans will remain at elevated levels throughout 2009.

At March 31, 2009, the allowance was $62.6 million, compared to $57.1 million at December 31, 2008 and $39.7
million at March 31, 2008. The allowance as a percentage of total period-end loans was 2.12% at March 31, 2009,
compared to 1.91% at December 31, 2008 and 1.42% at March 31, 2008. The allowance for loan losses as a
percentage of nonperforming loans was 60% at March 31, 2009, compared to 61% at December 31, 2008 and 55% at
March 31, 2008.
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Noninterest Income

The following includes the major components of noninterest income during the three months ended March 31, 2009
and 2008.

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2009 2008

(In thousands)
Service charges on deposit accounts $4,475 $4,774
Trust and investment services revenue 2,375 2,654
Other fees for customer services 515 599
ATM and network user fees 972 769
Insurance commissions 314 228
Mortgage banking revenue 1,150 536
Other 56 20

Total Noninterest Income $9,857 $9,580

Noninterest income of $9.9 million in the first quarter of 2009 increased $0.3 million, or 2.9%, compared to the first
quarter of 2008. The Corporation experienced increases in several noninterest income categories in the first quarter of
2009 compared to the first quarter of 2008, including ATM and network user fees of $0.2 million, or 26.4%, insurance
commissions of $0.1 million, or 37.7%, and mortgage banking revenue of $0.6 million, or 115%. The increase in
ATM and network user fees was primarily due to an increase in ATM usage by bank customers and to an increase in
the surcharge fee for non-customer usage. The increase in mortgage banking revenue in the first quarter of 2009 was
primarily due to the increased volume of loans sold in the secondary market compared to the first quarter of 2008 and
the rise in the net gains associated with those sold loans. The Corporation experienced decreases in several noninterest
income categories in the first quarter of 2009 compared to the first quarter of 2008, including service charges on
deposit accounts of $0.3 million, or 6.3%, trust and investment services revenue of $0.3 million, or 10.5%, and other
fees for customer services of $0.1 million, or 14.0%. The decline in the trust and investment services revenue was
largely due to general declines in the U.S. equity market during the last quarter of 2008 and first quarter of 2009
which negatively impacted the value of trust customers' asset values, on which fees are generally based, compared to
asset values in the previous quarter ended March 31, 2008. This decline was offset by an increase of $0.1 million in
investment services revenue during the quarter. The decline in service charges on deposit accounts was due primarily
to decreases in both overdraft and business service charge fee income.
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Operating Expenses

The following includes the major categories of operating expenses during the three months ended March 31, 2009 and
2008.

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2009 2008

(In thousands)
Salaries and wages $12,194 $11,539
Employee benefits 3,223 2,940
Occupancy 2,707 2,770
Equipment 2,342 2,187
Postage and courier 729 846
Supplies 410 374
Professional fees 1,004 1,083
Outside processing / service fees 828 677
Michigan business taxes (7) 125
Advertising and marketing 594 343
Intangible asset amortization 203 531
Telephone 388 564
FDIC insurance premiums 1,152 81
Other real estate and repossessed asset expenses 1,618 1,179
Loan and collection 574 293
Other 1,246 1,312

Total Operating Expenses $29,205 $26,844

Total operating expenses of $29.2 million in the first quarter of 2009 were up $2.4 million, or 8.8%, from the first
quarter of 2008. The increase in operating expenses during the three-month period ended March 31, 2009, compared
to the same period in 2008, was primarily due to increases in salaries and wages, employee benefits, advertising and
marketing, FDIC insurance premiums, other real estate and repossessed asset expenses and loan and collection costs.
These higher expenses were partially offset by decreases in intangible asset amortization and telephone expense.

Salaries and wages of $12.2 million in the first quarter of 2009 were up $0.7 million, or 5.7%, compared to the same
time period in 2008. The increase was attributable to merit salary increases, new positions added during the latter part
of 2008 and an increase in commissions paid on investment services revenue.

Employee benefits of $3.2 million in the first quarter of 2009 were up $0.3 million, or 9.6%, from the first quarter of
2008. As of January 1, 2009 the Corporation's health insurance became self-funded and projections of anticipated
claims for funding purposes increased 14% over the prior year based on 2008 actual claims experience trends. The
increase was primarily attributable to higher group health expense. In addition, pension/401(k) costs and payroll taxes
increased in association with the increase in salaries and wages.

Advertising and marketing expenses of $0.6 million during the first quarter of 2009 were $0.3 million, or 73.2%,
higher than in the first quarter of 2008.
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Intangible asset amortization expense of $0.2 million in the first quarter of 2009 was down $0.3 million, or 61.8%,
from the first quarter of 2008. The decrease was due to several core deposit intangible assets becoming fully
amortized during the 2008 calendar year.

Telephone expense of $0.4 million in the first quarter of 2009 was down $0.2 million, or 31.2%, from the first quarter
of 2008. The decrease was due to vendor credits received from newly negotiated contracts.

FDIC insurance premiums of $1.2 million in the first quarter of 2009 were up $1.1 million from the first quarter of
2008. The increase was partly due to the FDIC finalizing a rule in December 2008 that raised the then current
assessment rates uniformly by 7 basis points for the first quarter of 2009 assessment. The new rule resulted in
annualized assessment rates for Risk Category 1 institutions ranging from 12 to 14 basis points. The increase in
deposit insurance expense during the first quarter of 2009 compared to the first quarter of 2008 was also partly related
to the Corporation's utilization of available credits to offset assessments during the first quarter of 2008. The
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available credits were fully utilized for assessments through December 31, 2008. The increase was also partly related
to the additional 10 basis point assessment paid on covered transaction accounts exceeding $0.25 million under the
Temporary Liquidity Guaranty Program.

In February 2009, the FDIC issued final rules to amend the deposit insurance fund restoration plan, change the
risk-based assessment system and set assessment rates for Risk Category 1 institutions to begin in the second quarter
of 2009. Effective April 1, 2009, for Risk Category 1 institutions, the methodology for establishing assessment rates
for large institutions such as Chemical Bank will determine the initial base assessment rate using a weighted
combination of weighted-average CAMELS component ratings, long-term debt issuer ratings (converted to numbers
and averaged) and certain financial ratios. The new initial base assessment rates for Risk Category 1 institutions will
range from 12 to 16 basis points, on an annualized basis, and from 7 to 24 basis points after the effect of potential
base-rate adjustments, in each case depending upon various factors. Additionally, the FDIC issued an interim rule that
may result in a 20 basis point emergency special assessment on June 30, 2009 with the potential for additional
emergency special assessments of up to 10 basis points at the end of any calendar quarter thereafter. The Corporation
cannot provide any assurance as to the ultimate amount or timing of any such emergency special assessments, should
such special assessments occur, as such special assessments are dependent upon a variety of factors which are beyond
the Corporation's control.

Other real estate and repossessed asset expenses of $1.6 million during the first quarter of 2009 were $0.4 million, or
37.2%, higher than in the first quarter of 2008. The increase was primarily attributable to higher maintenance
expenses and property taxes related to the significant increase in other real estate held in 2009 compared to 2008.

Loan and collection costs of $0.6 million during the first quarter of 2009 were $0.3 million, or 95.9%, higher than in
the first quarter of 2008. The increase was primarily attributable to expenses related to the higher level of
nonperforming loans.

Income Tax Expense

The Corporation's effective federal income tax rate was 16.2% in the first quarter of 2009, compared to 32.9% in the
first quarter of 2008. The differences between the federal statutory income tax rates and the Corporation's effective
federal income tax rates are primarily a function of the proportion of the Corporation's interest income exempt from
federal taxation, nondeductible interest expense and other nondeductible expenses relative to pretax income and tax
credits. The decrease in the effective tax rate for the first quarter of 2009 was due to the reduction in the Corporation's
pre-tax income. The Corporation records income tax expense for interim periods in accordance with Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 28, "Interim Financial Reporting" (APB 28), and FASB Interpretation No. 18,
"Accounting for Income Taxes in Interim Periods" (FIN 18). At March 31, 2009, as allowed by FIN 18, the
Corporation could not reliably estimate the actual effective annual tax rate due to the potential variability of the
Corporation's pre-tax income in subsequent quarters for 2009. Therefore, the Corporation recorded income tax
expense for the three-month period ended March 31, 2009 at the actual effective tax rate for this period rather than at
an estimate of the annual effective tax rate.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in the fair value of financial instruments due primarily to
changes in interest rates. The volatility and instability of the global financial markets that began in the third quarter of
2008 and continued through the first quarter of 2009 has increased the Corporation's market risk. The Corporation
expects this heightened level of risk will remain and could increase during the remainder of 2009. Interest rate risk is
the Corporation's primary market risk and results from timing differences in the repricing of assets and liabilities and
changes in relationships between rate indices. Interest rate risk is the exposure to adverse changes in net interest
income due to changes in interest rates. Consistency of the Corporation's net interest income is largely dependent upon
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the effective management of interest rate risk. Interest rate risk arises in the normal course of the Corporation's
business due to differences in the repricing and maturity characteristics of interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities.
Sensitivity of earnings to interest rate changes arises when yields on assets change differently from the interest costs
on liabilities. Interest rate sensitivity is determined by the amount of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities repricing within a specific time period and the magnitude by which interest rates change on the various
types of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The management of interest rate sensitivity includes
monitoring the maturities and repricing opportunities of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Interest
rate sensitivity management aims at achieving reasonable stability in both net interest income and the net interest
margin through periods of changing interest rates. The Corporation's goal is to avoid a significant decrease in net
interest income and thus an adverse impact on the profitability of the Corporation in
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periods of changing interest rates. It is necessary to analyze projections of net interest income based upon the repricing
characteristics of the Corporation's interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the varying magnitude by
which interest rates may change on loans, investment securities, interest-bearing deposit accounts and borrowings.
The Corporation's interest rate sensitivity is managed through policies and risk limits approved by the boards of
directors of the Corporation and its subsidiary bank and an Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO). The ALCO,
which is comprised of executive management from various areas of the Corporation, including finance, lending,
investments and deposit gathering, meets regularly to execute asset and liability management strategies. The ALCO
establishes guidelines and monitors the sensitivity of earnings to changes in interest rates. The goal of the ALCO
process is to maximize net interest income and the net present value of future cash flows within authorized risk limits.

The Corporation has not used interest rate swaps or other derivative financial instruments in the management of
interest rate risk, other than best efforts forward loan delivery commitments utilized to offset the interest rate risk of
interest rate lock commitments provided to customers on unfunded residential mortgage loans intended to be sold in
the secondary market. In the normal course of the mortgage loan selling process, the Corporation enters into a best
efforts forward loan delivery commitment with an investor. The Corporation's exposure to market risk on these best
efforts forward loan delivery commitments is not significant.

The primary technique utilized by the Corporation to measure its interest rate risk is simulation analysis. Simulation
analysis forecasts the effects on the balance sheet structure and net interest income under a variety of scenarios that
incorporate changes in interest rates, changes in the shape of the Treasury yield curve, changes in interest rate
relationships, changes in interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities volumes and mix and loan
prepayments.

These forecasts are compared against net interest income projected in a stable interest rate environment. While many
assets and liabilities reprice either at maturity or in accordance with their contractual terms, several balance sheet
components demonstrate characteristics that require various assumptions to be made to reflect their repricing
behavior. Key assumptions in the simulation analysis include prepayments on loans, probable calls of investment
securities, changes in market conditions, loan volumes and loan pricing, deposit sensitivity and customer preferences.
These assumptions are inherently uncertain as they are subject to fluctuation and revision in a dynamic environment.
As a result, the simulation analysis cannot precisely forecast the impact of rising and falling interest rates on net
interest income. Actual results will differ from simulated results due to many factors such as changes in balance sheet
components, interest rate changes, changes in market conditions and management strategies.

The Corporation's interest rate risk position has historically been liability sensitive, meaning net interest income has
been expected to increase if market interest rates fall and decrease if market interest rates rise, other factors being
unchanged. As market interest rates have decreased during the twelve months ended March 31, 2009 to historically
low levels, the Corporation's liability sensitive position will be partially limited by the magnitude of change in interest
rates, as repriceable deposit liabilities cannot be repriced lower by the same magnitude as the assets scheduled to
reprice if short-term market interest rates further decline. In addition, a large portion of the Corporation's loan
portfolio is priced at interest rates which are fixed for more than one year, which results in loans that may reprice in
different time periods than those time periods in which market interest rate changes occur.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Effective January 1, 2008, the Corporation adopted SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements" (SFAS 157).
SFAS 157 provides guidance for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities by providing a single definition for
fair value, a framework for measuring fair value and expanding disclosures concerning fair value. SFAS 157 requires
expanded information about the extent to which companies measure assets and liabilities at fair value, the information
used to measure fair value and the effect of fair value measurements on earnings. SFAS 157 applies whenever other
standards require (or permit) assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value. SFAS 157 does not expand the use of
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fair value in any new circumstances.

Under SFAS 157, fair value refers to the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an
exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants in the market in which the reporting entity transacts
such sales or transfers. SFAS 157 clarifies the principle that fair value should be based on the assumptions market
participants would use when pricing an asset or liability. In support of this principle, SFAS 157 establishes a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the information used to develop those assumptions. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest
priority to quoted prices in active markets and the lowest priority to unobservable data, for example, the reporting
entity's own data. Under SFAS 157, fair value measurements are separately disclosed by level within the fair value
hierarchy.
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The Corporation utilizes fair value measurements to record certain assets at fair value and to determine fair value
disclosures. Investment securities-Available-for-sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Additionally, the
Corporation may be required to record other assets at fair value on a non-recurring basis, such as impaired loans,
goodwill, core deposit intangibles, mortgage servicing rights, other real estate and repossessed assets. These
nonrecurring fair value measurements typically involve application of lower of cost or market accounting or
write-downs of individual assets.

SFAS 157 establishes a three-level hierarchy for disclosure of assets and liabilities recorded at fair value. The
classification of assets and liabilities within the hierarchy is based on whether the inputs to the valuation methodology
used for measurement are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market-derived or market-based
information obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect management's estimates about
market data.

Level 1 Valuation is based upon quoted prices for identical instruments traded in active markets. Level 1 valuations for the
Corporation include U.S. Treasury securities that are traded by dealers or brokers in active over-the-counter markets.
Valuations are obtained from a third party pricing service for investment securities.

Level 2 Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation techniques for which all significant assumptions are
observable in the market. Level 2 valuations for the Corporation include government sponsored agency securities, including
securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC), Federal
National Mortgage Association (FNMA) and Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB), securities issued by state and political
subdivisions, mortgage-backed securities, collateralized mortgage obligations and corporate bonds. Valuations are obtained
from a third party pricing service for investment securities.

Level 3 Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use at least one significant assumption not observable in the market.
These unobservable assumptions reflect estimates of assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability. Valuation techniques include use of option pricing models, discounted cash flow models or similar techniques. The
determination of fair value also requires significant management judgment or estimation. Level 3 valuations for the
Corporation include securities issued by certain state and political subdivisions, trust preferred securities, impaired loans,
goodwill, core deposit intangible assets, mortgage servicing rights, other real estate and repossessed assets.

For assets and liabilities recorded at fair value, it is the Corporation's policy to maximize the use of observable inputs
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when developing fair value measurements, in accordance with the fair
value hierarchy in SFAS 157. When available, the Corporation utilizes quoted market prices to measure fair value. If
quoted prices are not available, fair values are measured using independent pricing models or other model-based
valuation techniques that include market inputs such as benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer
spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers, reference data and industry and economic events. All
of the Corporation's investment securities measured at fair value on a recurring basis use either Level 1 or Level 2
measurements to determine fair value. All of the Corporation's assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis
use Level 3 valuations.

The degree of management judgment involved in determining the fair value of a financial instrument is dependent
upon the availability of quoted market prices or observable market parameters. For financial instruments that trade
actively and have quoted market prices or observable market parameters, there is minimal subjectivity involved in
measuring fair value. When observable market prices and parameters are not fully available, management judgment is
necessary to estimate fair value. In addition, changes in market conditions may reduce the availability of quoted prices
or observable data. For example, changes in secondary market activities could result in observable market inputs
becoming unavailable. Therefore, when market data is not available, the Corporation would use valuation techniques
requiring more management judgment to estimate the appropriate fair value measurement.

At March 31, 2009, $501.6 million, or 12.6% of total assets, consisted of Investment securities-Available-for-sale
recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. All of these financial instruments used valuation methodologies involving
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market-based or market-derived information, or Level 1 and 2 valuations, to measure fair value. None of these
financial assets were measured using model-based techniques, or Level 3 measurements. At March 31, 2009, the
Corporation had no liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis.
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At March 31, 2009, $71.4 million, or 1.8% of total assets, consisted of financial instruments recorded at fair value on
a nonrecurring basis. All of these financial instruments used methodologies involving model-based techniques, or
Level 3 valuations. The financial assets measured using Level 3 valuations include certain impaired loans and certain
other real estate and repossessed assets. At March 31, 2009, no liabilities were measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis.

See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements for a complete discussion on the Corporation's use and
development of fair value measurements.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Information concerning quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk is contained in the discussion
regarding interest rate risk and sensitivity under the captions "Liquidity Risk" and "Market Risk" of the Corporation's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

The Corporation does not believe that there has been a material change in the nature or categories of the Corporation's
primary market risk exposure, or the particular markets that present the primary risk of loss to the Corporation. As of
the date of this report, the Corporation does not know of or expect there to be any material change in the general
nature of its primary market risk exposure in the near term. The methods by which the Corporation manages its
primary market risk exposure, as described in the sections of its 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K, have not changed
materially during the current year. As of the date of this report, the Corporation does not expect to make material
changes in those methods in the near term. The Corporation may change those methods in the future to adapt to
changes in circumstances or to implement new techniques.

The Corporation's market risk exposure is mainly comprised of its vulnerability to interest rate risk. Prevailing interest
rates and interest rate relationships are primarily determined by market factors that are beyond the Corporation's
control. All information provided in response to this item consists of forward-looking statements. Reference is made
to the section captioned "Safe Harbor Statement" in this report for a discussion of the limitations on the Corporation's
responsibility for such statements. In this discussion, "near term" means a period of one year following the date of the
most recent consolidated statement of financial position contained in this report.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
An evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Corporation's management,
including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of
the Corporation's disclosure controls and procedures. Based on and as of the time of that evaluation, the Corporation's
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, concluded that the Corporation's
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report. There was no
change in the Corporation's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the three months ended
March 31, 2009 that has materially affected, or that is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Corporation's internal
control over financial reporting.
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Part II.  Other Information

Item 1A. Risk Factors
Information concerning risk factors is contained in the discussion in Item 1A, "Risk Factors," in the Corporation's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008. As of the date of this report, the Corporation
does not believe that there has been a material change in the nature or categories of the Corporation's risk factors, as
compared to the information disclosed in the Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2008.
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Item 6. Exhibits
          Exhibits.  The following exhibits are filed as part of this report on Form 10-Q:

Exhibit
Number Document

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation. Previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Registration Statement on
Form S-8 filed with the Commission on March 2, 2001. Here incorporated by reference.

3.2 Bylaws. Previously filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
January 23, 2009. Here incorporated by reference.

4.1 Selected provisions of Restated Articles of Incorporation. See Exhibit 3.1.

4.2 Selected provisions of Bylaws. See Exhibit 3.2.

31.1 Certification. Certification of Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President under Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification. Certification of Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer under Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CHEMICAL FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Date:  May 7, 2009 By: /s/ David B. Ramaker

      David B. Ramaker
      Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and
      President
      (Principal Executive Officer)

Date:  May 7, 2009 By: /s/ Lori A. Gwizdala

      Lori A. Gwizdala
      Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
      Officer and Treasurer
      (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit
Number Document

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation. Previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-8
filed with the Commission on March 2, 2001. Here incorporated by reference.

3.2 Bylaws. Previously filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 23,
2009. Here incorporated by reference.

4.1 Selected provisions of Restated Articles of Incorporation. See Exhibit 3.1.

4.2 Selected provisions of Bylaws. See Exhibit 3.2.

31.1 Certification. Certification of Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President under Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification. Certification of Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer under Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350.
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